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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Industries Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Jdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.




(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

it. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 1.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 001111N

Partner
Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.

Date: | ;5/"? U 7 G i ’




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Industries Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2019.

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the
provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i}(b) & (i}(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii}
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited Hability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b} & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
{Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections
73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.




10.

11.

12

13.

14.

15.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory
dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government
and has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause {viii}
of paragraph 3 of the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
related parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has
not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For J.C. Bhalila & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 00I11T1N
Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: N01da (UTF)

Date : 9:)/{3‘\/\0




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
imternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Ccatrols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ].C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN

L
i

Sudhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date : })/(}')/Q{}




TRIVENT INDUSTREIES LIMITED

e oot as ab March 31, 2009

sl o i, aeshess ollierinse shided

Current assets
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 4952 60.20
Total current assets 49.52 60,20
Total assels 49,52 60.20
SEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Fquily share capital 50.00 50.00
Other equity (474.24) (337.78)
Total equily (424.24) (287.78)
SLIABILITIES
‘Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 400.00 300,00
ii. 7Trade payables
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
{y) total vutstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13.77 11.80
i i, Other financial Habilities £9.99 35.08
Other cwrrent liabilities - 1,10
it‘llofal current liabilities 473,76 347.98
"Total liabilities 473.76 317.98
ITotal equity and liabilities 49.52 60,20
The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number ; 00111iN

)

" Gudhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 00296589




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

statement of Profitand Loss for the year ended March 3%, 2019

i thosands odtess odleraelne siated]

‘Income - .
Ixpenses

Finance costs 9 27.68 19.19
Other expenses 10 108.78 90,20
Total expenses 136.46 109.39
Loss before lax {136.40) {10%.39)
Tax expense 11 - -
Loss for the year (136.46} (109.39)

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss -
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i} Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -

‘Total comprehensive income for the year {136.40) (109.39)

Earnings/{loss) per equity share of T1 each

Basic 12 {2.73) (2.19)
Diluted 12 (2.73) 2.19)

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Yor |.C.Bhalia & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants '

Firm's registration numbey ; 001111N

4 e
udhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia Debajii Bagchi
Partney Director Directo
Membership Ne. 80051 DIN : 00296589 DIN 1 02661320

Place : Notda (UFP)
Date E%/l A
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statermnent of Changes in Fouity for the vear ended March 31, 201 9

fevif it 5 Bioaeaindy, sfesa athereie stated)

A, Equity share capital

FEquity shares of T 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

e

As at 31 March 50.00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2018 50.00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2019 50.00

B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2017 ' (228.39) (228.39)
Loss for the year (109.39) {109.39)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (109,39} (£09.39}
Balance as at 31 March 2018 (337.78) (337.78)
Loss for the year {136.46) (136.46)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {136.46} {136.46)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (@74.24) (473.24)

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
¥or ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbes): 001111N
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Sudhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia Debajt Bagchi
Partner Director Direckdr
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 00296589

DIN : 02561320

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date %b/ et
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows Tor the vear ended March 31, 201 9

fodE smonni i 3 thoreads, aitless offerise sinted}

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax (136.46) {109.39)
Adjustments for

Finance costs 27.68 19.19
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 197 0.30

Change in other jiabililies (1.10) 1.10
Cash used in operations {107.91) {88.80)
Income tax (paid)/ refund . -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (107.91) {88.80)

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 100.00 100.00
Interest paid (2.77) (1.93)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 97.23 98.07
Nel increase/ {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (10.68) 9.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2) 60.20 50,93
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ({refer note 2) 49.52 60.20

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

alanceasa
Cash flows 100.00 {1.93)
Finance costs accruals - 19.19
Balance as at 31 March 2018 300.00 35.08
Cash flows 100.00 2.77)
Finance costs accruals - 27.68
Balance as at 31 March 2019 400.00 59.99

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
Asper our report of even date attached

For}.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 001111N
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wdhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director
Mermbership No. 80051 DIN : 00296589
Phce : Noida (U.P.) @QEWM‘
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Triveni Industries Limited {“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Deoband, District-
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh- 247554,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the signtficant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} [Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii} Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule TII to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the iﬂrppaér{g?nt at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss

P
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(d)

(e)

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of iis
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax lability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pertod and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial
statements of the period {except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

(ili) A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{f) Financial assets

(i}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or foss are expensed in profit or loss.

Bebt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

+  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

¢  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI

«  Fair value through profit or loss {FVIPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
«  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(z) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

()

(if)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial lability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial labilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
» those measured at amortised cost.

Financial labilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting pertods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial Habilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

+  TFair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities ave classified as at FVIPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

«  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(h)

(k)

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recoghised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offselting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement _

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly Hquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2: Cash: and cash equivalents

31-Mar19 - 31-Mar-8

Al amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in currend accounts 49.52 £0.20

Total cash and cash equivalents 49,52 60,20

Note 3: Equity share capital

.'31-Mar—jl‘) — | s T
Number of shares Amount Number of shares e

AUTHORISED

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 50,000 50.00 50,000 50,00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 50,000 5(.00 50,000 50.00

(i} Movements in equity share capital

: AT SRR S . . Nun.lherofshar.es' .
As at 31 March 2017 50,000 50.00

Movement during the year - -
As al 31 March 2018 ) 50,000 50.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 50,000 50,00

(ii} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one ciass of equity shares with a par value of T 1/- per share. The helder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting all Habilities and
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(it} Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-19 ST -Mands
Y holding Number of shaves

Number of shares

Triveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company} 50,000 100% 50,000

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
S D i e $1-Mar-10 - S B1-Mand8.
Number of shares "% holding Number of shares

riveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 50,000 100%
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Note 4: Other equity

o S R 31 Mard9 o 31-Mar18
Retained carings {474.24) (437,78}
‘Fotal other equity (474.24) (337.78)

(i} Retained ecarnings

Ca-Mar19 - 31-Mar-18

Opening balance (337.78) (228.39)
Loss for the year (136.46) (109.39)
Closing balance {474.24) (337.78)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance with the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Note 5: Current borrowings

31-Mae-19 " 31-Mar-18

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Repayable on demand

- Loan from related party (refer note 13} 400,00 300.00

400.00 300.00

‘Fotal current borrowings

(i) The weighted average effective interest rate on leans is 8% per annum (31 March 2018: 8% per armum).

Note &: Trade payables

31-Mar-19 — — 31-Mar1s .::. "

S S . Current " Non-current - Current " Non-current

Trade payables (at amorlised cost) '

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and ;
small enterprises (vefer note 18)

- ']‘(.}tal mlista»ufi:1g dues of creditors .oilwr than 1377 ) 11.80 i}
micro enterprises and small enterprises

- 11.80 -

Total trade payables 13.77

Note 70 Other financial Babilities

'.31;Mar_-1_9 E—— — 3_1.-_1.\43&1-8': —

Current Non- current Current © " Non-current .

Al amortised cost
59.99 - 35.08 -

- 35.08 -

Interesl acerued

Total other financial liabilities 59.99

Note 8: Other labilities

'_'31—'Mar-1_9' — . R S Marta ™Y .
Current Non- current Current © .. Non-current *

Slalutory remittances - - 1.10

Total other liabilities - - 1.10 -
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Note 9: Finance costs

31-Mard9 510 31-Mar-18
Interest on loan 27.68 19.18
Other interest expense - 0.0%
Total finance costs 27.68 19.19

Note 10: Other expenses

3-Mar19 o 31-Mar-1§
Service charges 70.80 70.35
Legal and professional expenses 23.60 4,93
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11.86
Rates and taxes 193 0.44
Miscellaneous expenses 0.65 2.68
Total olher expenses 108.78 90.20

{i} Payment to Audilors

T SL-Mar19 ol 31-Mar18)
11.80 11.80
11.80 11.80

Statutory audit fee

‘Total payment to auditors

Note 11: Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

31-Mar19 i 31-Mar—'1$

Current tax
Deferred lax

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s tax vate:

A " 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Loss before tax

(136.46) . {109.39)
{ncome tax calculated at 26.00% (2017-18: 25.75%) (35.48) (28.17)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 35.48 2817

Total income tak expense recognised in profit or loss

Naote 12: Earningsf{loss) per share

" 31-Mar-19
Loss for the year altributable to owners of the Company {A] {136.46) (109.29)
Weighted average nuanber of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 50,000 50,000
Basic earnings/ (loss)y per equity share {face vajue of X 1 per share) [A/B] (2.73) (2.19)

Diluted earnings /{loss) per equity share (face value of T1 per share) {A/B] (2.73) (219
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Note 13: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
(a) Holding Company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Holdinig Comiaany Fellow Subsld:ary .

. | Financial period . Total . .

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 - 70.80
31-Mar-18 70.35 - 70.35
Interest expense 31-Mar-19 - 27.68 27.68
31-Mar-18 - 19.18 19.18
Loan taken 31-Mar-19 - 100.00 100.00
31-Mar-18 - - 10000 100.00

Qutstanding balances

Payable 31-Mar-19 - 459.99 459.99
31-Mar-18 - 335.08 335.08

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s
length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The
outstanding balances at the period-end are unsecured and settlerment occurs in cash.
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Note 14: Capital management

The Company is yet to start business activities and hence, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period is not indicative of the capital
structure which the Company may like to adopt after commencement of the business. The resultant capital structure will appropriately be
decided based on the business requirements and the industry benchmarks. :

The Company is not subject to any externaily imposed capilal requirements.

Note 15: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The Company’s financial assets
are presently nominal and comprise of cash and bank balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and eredit risk.
The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company/Fellow subsidiary
companies.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. Financial Habilities mainly include amount payable to the fellow
subsidiary towards the loan. The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supported by the Holding Company/
Fellow subsidiary companies through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. In view of the aforesaid and due to the fact that
the major amount of financial Jiabilities is due to the fellow subsidiary, the maturity of financial liabilities is flexible at this stage.
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Note 16: Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial instruments by category

CALMar9 . 1Mards
FVTPL/ Amortised - FVTPL/ 'Anmrtise_ﬁ .
RS WTOCI cost FVTOCI Cocost L
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances - 49,52 - 60.20

Total financial assets - 49.52 - 60.20

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 400,00 “ 300.00
Trade payables - 13.77 - 11.80
Ofther {inancial Habilities - 54,99 - 35,08
Total financial liabilities - 473.76 - 346.88

{ii} The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial labilities recognised in the financial statements approximate
their fair values due to their short-term nature,
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Note 17: Commitments, contingent labilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitment, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: ¥ Nil).

Note 18: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

N _ . X . SRR 31-Mar-19:
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year; as at the end of the year
(iY Principal amount
(it} Interest due on above

The amaunt of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
cach accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micra, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amaount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 19 Standards issued but not yet effective

The slandards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and it replaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices {herelo.
Ind A5 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprii 2019. Ind AS 116 sels out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires Jessees to account for all eases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance leases under Ind A5 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of Jow-value’ assets (e.g., personal compsiers) and
short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a Hability to make lease
payments (i.e, the lease Hability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the iease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be alse
required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {e.g. a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting

froim & change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
Hability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019. As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the

Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial statements in the period of initial
application,

Note 20: The accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March 2019 are T 474.24 thousands which have exceeded the paid up capital of T 50 thousands.
The Company is yet te commence its business. The Josses till now are whally funded by the Holding Company and fts group companies. Furlher, the
Holding Company has assured to continue providing financial support to the Company as long as the it continues fo remain as subsidiary to ensure that
the Company continues to operate as a going concern and is able to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for payment over the next 12 months.

Accardingly, the accounts have been prepared on geing concern basis. Further there are no items of assets in respect of which provision for impairment is
reguired,

Note 21: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directars of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject to approval of shareholders,

As per our report of even date attached

Tor J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 00 Zi‘ll\l
N

Shdhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director
Membership No, 80051 DIN : 00296589
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Engineering Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Engineering
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have -
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) Iy our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

{(d}In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.




{g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For ].C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 00111IN

Y. /’d‘
Sudhir Mallick
Partner
] 1 Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P)

Date: | 3)/0 /\(}jC}




Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Engineering Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2019,

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions
of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clauses
(iif) (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) {c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’'s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies {Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Servicse Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues
were In arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.




10.

11,

12,

13.

14.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues
of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has
not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly

convertible debenture during the year.

15.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN

udhir Mallick
Partmer

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date: | 5/05_70'{ ojq




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
coritrols over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial conirols system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

Sudhir Mallick /’/"

Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place; N01da (U.P)

Date : /OQ/{O




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Shweb e ol arch 31, 2619

s afierse adntd)

Non-current agsets

Investment properly 2 43593,78 4359378
Financial assets

i, Other financial assets 3 300.00 .
Income (ax assets (net) 4 19.61 17.18
Tolal non-current assets 43913.39 43610.96

Current assets
Financial assels

i. Cash and cash equivalents 5{a) 48.53 568.21

ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5({b) 100.06 -

i. Other financial assets 3 21.88 -
Tolal cusrent assets 170,41 568.21
Total assets ~ 44083.80 4417917

FQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Equily share capital 6 26500.00 26500.00
Other equity
i Bguity component of compound financial instruments 6 15291.74 15291.74:
i, Retained earnings 7 (2797.85) (2350.75)
Tolal equity 38993.89 3944099
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i.  Borrowings 8 5071.79 471794
Total non-current liabilities 5071.79 471794

Current liabilities

; Financial Habilities

: i. ‘Trade payables 9
| (a) tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 11.50 18.95
Other current liabilities 10 - 1.29
locome tax labitities {net) 4 6,32 -
Total current liabilities 18.12 20,34
Total liabilities 5089.91 4738,18
Total equity and Habilities 44083.80 44179.17

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per owr report of even date attached

For).C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numbgt : 001111N

5
U \ \_.
Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagehi ' Atul Agarwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : (2561320 DiIN: 06875769

Place : Noida

Date /}V g %\
gt N& k
= / e i




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statentent of Prafit and Loss for the yenar ended March 31, 2019

: B T S T S S I PP I Or e F PR FURTIE O I
sopersiy A Hmsreads, waless offiereiae slefeds

Qther income . 11 24.31 1.51
Total income 24.31 1.51
Expenses

Finance cosls 12 353.85 44.72
Other expenses 13 111.24 94,73
Total expenses 465.09 139.45
Loss before tax {440.78) (137.94)
Tax expense:

- Current lax 14 6,32 -
- Deferred lax 14 - -
Total tax expense 632 -
Loss for the year {447.10) {137.94)

Other comprehensive income

A (iy Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) lMems that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
B (i)} Income tax relating o items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year (447.10) (137.94)

Earnings/{loss) per equity share of T each

Basic 15 (6.02) (0.671)
Dikated 15 (0.02) .01

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an intepral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firmv's registration numl7 1001111IN

\M_me___”___u____m.__..mh

- Sudhir Maliick Deb) jit Bagchi Abud Agarwal
Partner Diredtor Director
Membership No. 80051 DiIN 102561320 DIN: 06875769

Phace : Noida (UP)-
Date : E:}) O.f:.\" £y

'




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

tatcinent of Chap

=2 Hepoily for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

sealiieriens

IR TR T

A. Equity share capital

uity shares of 1 each issued, subscribad and fully paid up

As al 31 March 2017 2050000
quity shares issued during the year 600,00
As at 31 March 2018 26500,00

Changzes during the year

As at 31 March 2019 26500.00

#. Other equity

!!nlnnce at 3% March 2017 - (2212.81) {2212.81)
Loss for the yeay - {137.94) (137.94)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - " *
Tolai comprehensive income for the year - (137.94) (137.94)
Issue of compound {inancial instruments (Preference shares) {refer note 6 & 8) 1524174 e 15291.74
Balance as at 31 March 2018 15291.74 {2350,75) 12940.99
Loss for the year E {447.10) {447.10)
Other comprehensive income, net of income lax - - -
Tofal comprehensive income for the year - (447.10) {447.10)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 15291.74| {2797.85) 1249389

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firnw's registration number ; J01111N

M

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of Triveni Enginecring Limited

Sudhir Mallick

Atul Agarwal
Pariner

Dhirecior

DIN: 06875769

Membership No. 800531




TRIVENI ENGINEGRING LIMITED

Statenent of Cash Flows for the vear ended Marely 31, 2019

FAR vroniinie fn Y Hgsainds, wnless il stifed)

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss bBefore Lax (440.78) {137.94)
Adjustments for

Interest income {24.31) {1.51)

Finance costs 353.85 44.72
Waorking capital adjustments ;

Change in trade payables (7.1%) 745

Change in other financial abilities “ {1376,14)

Change in other liabilities . (1,29 1,29
Cash used in operations (119.68) (1462.13)
Income tax paid (2.43) ~
Net cash outflow from operating activilies {122.311) {1462.,13)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investrment property - {235800.52)
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks {400.00) 54.23
Interest received 243 4.19
Net cash outflow from investing activities (397.57) {23522,10)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of eguity share capital - 6000.004
Proceeds from issue of compound financial instruments (Preference shares) (refer note 6 & 8) - 20000.00
Repayment of short term borrowings - (450.00)
Inerest paid (0.01) {89.04)
Net cash inflow from financing activities {0.01) 25,460.96
Nel increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (519.69) 476.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer nole 5 (a)} 508.21 91.48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 5 (a)) 48.52 568,21

Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities:

0.
Cash flows 4708.26 {450.00) (89.04)
5 Inance cosls aceraals 9.68 - 35,04
| - Balance as at 31 March 2018 4717.94 - -
| Cash flows - - -
i Finance costs accruals 353.86 -
§ Balance as at 31 March 2019 5071.80 - -
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Yor J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountants
Eirm's registration numb? : D011EIN /
P
Sudhir Mallick DebajitPBagchi Atul Agarwal

Director

Partner Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Triveni Engineering Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8" floor, Express
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201301,

Note I: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(2)

()

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Mistorical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
{cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impatrment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

()

()

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale, Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Maxch 31, 2019

{(g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

)

iy

(i)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, proviston is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outfiow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial
statements of the period {except in the exiremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(h) Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

¢ those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. ' )




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business modet for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

s Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(fii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i} Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. "

G
-




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(ii} Measurement
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial Hability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
Habilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

«  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

+  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
al EVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or foss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial Habilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(j) Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise preference shares redeemable at
par at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, however after 3 years of allotment the
Company shall have the option to (to be exercised at the beginning of each year) to redeem these
preference shares at any time. The preference shares shall be non-convertible., The preference shares
have a coupon rate of 10% and shall be non-cumulative.

The-liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value
which is determined as the present value of the eventual redemption amount discounted at the
ity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair

marlket rate of return, - THE £
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(k)

{0

value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instruments is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss, unless it qualifies for inclusion
in the cost of an asset,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash {lows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

" Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share

to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2: Investiment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 43593.78 43693.78
Addilions - .
Detetions N -
Closing gross carrying amounk 43593.76 43593.78

Accumuiaded depreciation and impairment
Opening accurnulaled deprecintion and impairment - -
Deprociation charge/ impairment losses -

Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment - -

Net carrying amount 43593.78 43593.78

(i) Pescription about investiment property
The Company’s ivestment properly consist of parcel of Jand at Dibai, District Butandshahar (Uttar Pradesh), India.

(ity Amount recognised in statement of profil and loss
There is ne amount refated to invesiment property whicl is recognised instatement of profit and Joss (31 March 2018: ¥ Nil}

(iti) Kestriclions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on fhe realisability of its investment property and no contracteal obligations o cither purchase, construct or develop
investment properly or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

The investiment properly owned by the Company is silualed in the vicinily of sugarcane growings areas. The properly was purchased in the year 2015-16 at the
circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in read eslate and industrial activities, the fair valse cannot be determined realisticatly in the
absence of transactions of simifar properties (including size} in the vicinity of the subject property.

Naote 3: Other financial assets

Al amorlised cost

fnlerest accrued on bank deposils 21,88 . - .

Other balances:
- Fixed deposils (original maturily more than one year) - 300,50 - -

{Toial other fipancial assels 21.88 300,00 : -

Note 4: Incime tax balances

31-Mar

< Non-eatrent.

[ncome tax assets

Tax refend receivaldle fnel) - 19.61 - 1718
- 19.61 . 1718}

Income tax liabilities
Provision lor income tax (nel} 6.32 - - -
6,32 - " -

Note 5: Cash and bank balances

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

L 3 M9

Al amortised cost

Balances with banks

- i current accounts 48,53 568.21
Cash en hand 0.00 Q.00
Totai cash and cash equivalents 48.53 568.21

{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenls

31Mar10
At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (original maturily exceeding three mmonths bul upto one year) 100.00

-,

Total bank b,alﬁﬁﬁ,é_s‘.igthe.r than cash and cash equivalents 160.00




TRIVENT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Nobes o Ehe Tinanciad

staternents For B yoor endaed Magch 51, 2009

Nole 6: Share capital

AUTTHORISED
quily shares of €1 cach 20,00,00,000 200000,00 20,00,00,000 200000,08
Preference shares of X1 each 500,060,000 50000.00 5,00,00,000 50000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Bquity shares of 1 cach 2,65,00,000 26500.00 2,65,00,000 2650000
10% Mon-Cumulalive Redeemabie Preference shares of T1 each

- Equity component of compound financial instruments 20,000,000 1529174 20,060,000 * 1520174

(i} Movemends in share capital
Muoevements in equily share capital

- Numbrer of shares:

As at 31 March 2017

2,05,00,000
FEquiiy shaves issued during the year 40,00,000 GO0
As at 31 March 2018 2,65,00,000.00 26500.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 2,65,00,000.00 2650000

Movements in equity cumpuneni of cﬂmpuund financial instruments- 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shaves

SRR SRR T N e R T S L Numberofshares
As al 31 March 2017 - -

Zquily componenl of compound Minancial inslrumenis issucd during the year 20,000,000 * 15201.74

As al 31 March 2018 20,600,000 * 15291.74
Movemend during the year - i
As al 31 March 2019 20,000,000 * 15291.741

(ii) Terms and rights attached 1o shares

Terms and rights attached Lo equily shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares with a par value of 2 1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled 10 ane vole per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian supees. The dividend proposed by the Beard of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeling.

Iin the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled {o receive the remaining assels of the Company, afler meeling all liabilitics
and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharchalding.

Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Each preference share has a par vatue of 2 1/- each and is redeemable at par at the end of 20 years frem the date of allolment, however after 3 years of
aliotment the Company shalt have Lhe option (lo be exercised at the beginning of each year} 1o redeem these preference shares at any time. The preference
shares shall be non-convertible. Fhe preference shares have a coupon rate of 10% and are non-cumulative, The preference shares rank ahead of the equity
shares in the event of liguidation.

: {Hii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

R 31—Mar~19 ’
p Numhuuf&lmen

: N:umber of sh

LEquity shares of 21 each

Triveni Engincering & Industrics Limited {Holding Company) 2,65,00,000 2,65,00,000

0% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of ¥ T each

Svastida Projects Limited {Fellow subsidiary) 20,000,000 * 20,000,000 * 100%

(iv} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
& “Number of «hare-. B ‘04 holding -~ Number of shares

Equity shares of T 1 each
Triveni Engineering & fndustries Limiled (Holding Company)

2,65,00,000 100% 2,65,00,000

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of ¥ 1 each

Svastida Projects Limited (Fetlow subsidiary) 20,000,000 * 20,000,000 *

* This represents 1otal number of 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemabie Preference shares of 2 1 each issued. The equity component of such compound flt ngial
instruments is reflected in Lhis note and the liability component of such firancial instrumoents is reficcted in non-current borrowings {refer note 8)
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Naole 7: Refained carnings

ph SRl S L atMard el ‘A1Mar-18
Opening balance {2350.75) 2212.81)
Loss for the year {447.10) (137.94)
Closing balance (2797 85) (2350.75)

Retained earnings represents undistribuled profits of the Company which can be distsibuled Lo its equity shareholders in accordance with the regquirement of
e Companies Act, 2013,

Note 8: Non-Currend borrowings

L a1-Mar-Y

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Liability compoacnt of compound financial instruments
- 0% Non-Cumuintive Redeemable Preference shares of 1 each (refer nole 6) 5071.79 473179

‘Tolal Non-current borrowings 5071.79 471794

i) The campounud financial insliaments (Peeference shares resenled in ihe b

alance sheol as [ollows;

31-Mar-19. 0 31 Mar-18

Eace value of compound financial instruments (Preference shares) issued 20000.00 20000.00

Eyuily component of compound financial instruments (Preference shares) (refer note 6) {15291.74) {15291.74)
4708.26

Inlerest acerued 363.53

Liabitity component of compound linaiial instruments {Preference shares)- Nen-current borrowings 5071.79 4717.94

(i) The effective inlerest rate of above borrowings is 7.5% per annum (31 March 2018: 7.5%).

MNole 9 Trade payables

’%lnMar-‘l‘J

Current 47 - Non- cuerent 75

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- ‘Total outstanding dues of miczo enterprises and
smali enferprises {refer nole 21)

- Total outslanding dues of creditors ather than
" ANEInG ; " 11.80 - 18.95 -
micra enterprises and small enlerprises

‘Total trade payables 11.80 - 18.95 -
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Note 1): Other liabilities

BMapl9 ) 2
(_:tlrr:e.::ﬁ.". S Non-current ‘
Statulory remittances N . 1.9
‘Fotal other fiabilities N N 1.29 .

Mote T1: Other income

S pMand9 5 3 Mk
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 24,31 1.5
Tolal other income 24.31 1.51

Note 12: Finance costs

1 33-Mar9.
Inlerest on Borrawings 353.85 44.72
Total finance costs 353,85 44.72
Note 13: Other expenses
1-Mar-18,

Service charges 235
Rates and taxes 2.44
Legal and professional expenses 9.15
Payment 1o Auditors (see (1) below) 11.80
Miscellancous expenses 099
Total other expenses 94.73

(i) Payment to Audilors

i ; o 31-Mar19) i aMars
Statutory audit fee

Reimbursement af expenses 0.44 -
Total payment to auditors 12,24 I'LSU!

Note 14 Income tax expense
Income Lax recognised in profil or loss

“g1-Mar19 T

i 31-Mar18

Current lax 632
Delerred tax

Taotal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 6.32

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multipiied by Company's tax rate;

SR T T T R . ¥ e A MAEAR - 31 Mai18
{.0ss before tax {440.78) {137.94)
Tncome tax caleulated a1 26.00% (2017-18: 25.75%) (114.60) (3552)
Effect of expenses Lhat is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 120,92 35.52
Tolal income tax expense recognised in profit or foss 632 -
Nate 15: Earnings/(loss) per share

31 Mard9' 131 Mar18

l.oss for the year atiributable 1o ewners of the Company {A] (447.10}
Weighled average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 2,65,00,000

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face valueof €1 per share) |A/B) ©.02)
Diluted carnings/ {Joss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) {A/B] (0.02)

Iy
./’th &Hﬁiéﬂf -
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Note 16: Related party transactions

(i) Related partics where control exists
I
{a) Triven; Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place;
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries
‘Friveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)
Svaslida Projects Limited (SPL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the (.umpany and related pmhes and outslandmb balances:

liuldm;, Compnn i eltnw Subbtd:ams
Gt HTENLS i I
Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 - - 70.80
31-Mar-18 70.35 - - 70.35
Interest expense 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - 35.01 - 35.01
Issue of equily share capital 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 600000 - - 6000.00
Issue of compound financial instruments 31-Mar-19 - - - -
{preference shares) 31-Mar-18 - . 20000.00 20000.04
i
Repayments of capital creditors (for purchase of 31-Mar-19 - - - - ?
investment property) 31-Mar-18 23580.52 - B 23580.52
Repayment of advances 3i-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 1376.14 - - 1376.14
Repayment of borrowings (Principal) 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - 450.00 - 450.00
Outstanding balances
3 Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-19 - - - -
5 31-Mar-18 - - - -
{iv) Terms & condilions: g‘

‘1

The transactions with related parties, inciuding service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm'’s length after taking into censideration?
b

market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are 3 Nil. !

(vi The amount of transactions/ balances as stated above are without giving effectto the [nd AS adjustments on account of Fair valuation/amortisation.
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Note 17: Capital management

For the purpose of capilal management, capital includes tolal equily of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management is Lo maximize shareholder
value. The Company does not have significant borrowings.

The Company manages ils capital stracture and makes adjistments in light of ehanges in economic conditions, The Company may resor o furlher issue of capital to
Tl cxpansion of basiness, The Company monitors capital structuse through gearing ratio which at the end of reporling puriod was as follows:

Non-current Borrowings (vote 8) 5071.79

Trade payables (note 9} 11.80

Total debt 5083.59 473689
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 5(a)} (28.53} {508.2%)
Net debt (A) 5035.06 3168.69
‘T'otal equity (note 6 & note 7) 38959389 39440.99
‘Totad equity and net debt (B) 44028.95 A3609.68
Gearing ratio (A/B) 11% 10%

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

The Company is net subject to any extesnally imposed capilal requirements,

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Camypany’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables, The Company’s flnancial assts are presently nominal and comprise of cash and bank
batances. The Company's activities does not expose it to markel risk and credil risk. The Company manages its liquidity through intesnat accraals and capital infusion
from the Holding Company/Feliow subsidiary companies.

In view of nascent slage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supported by the
Holding Company /Fellow subsidiary companies theough loans or through equtity infusion, as appropriate. Berrowings shail mature as per tferms mentioned bnnote
6(ii), all olher financial liabilities shall matare within ane year from the reporting date.
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Note 19: Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial instruments by category

I‘unncial assels
Cash and bank balances - 448.53 - 508.21
Other financial assets “ 21.88 - -
Total financial assets - 47041 - 568.21
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 5071.79 - 471794
Trade payables - 11.80 - 18.95
‘Total financial Liabilities - 5083.59 - 4736.89

{i) The liability component of compound financiai instruments is carried in books based on discounted cash flows (efer note 6 & 8). The
ancial assels and financial liabifities are considered to be at their fair values, by the management, due
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Note 20: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent labilities and contingent assels as at 31 March 2019 (31 Marcl 208: T Nil).

Note 21 Bisclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based an the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 20006, the relevant information is provided here below:

1Mar19

‘The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount - .
(i) Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during - -
each accounting year.

"The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enlerprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
inlerest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible - .
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 22: Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yel effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s {inancial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends 1o adopt these standards when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} on 30 March 2019 and it replaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices therelo.
tnd AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets cul the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and
short-lerm leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liabitity) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense an the right-of-use asset, Lessees wilt be also
required o remeasure the lease liabitity upon the accurzence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to delermine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment o the right-of-use asset.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019, As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the Company
s in the pracess of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact an its financial statements in the period of initial application,

Note 23: Approval of financial statements

The (inancial stalements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject to approval of shareholders.
As per our report of even date attached
For 1.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbeg; 901111N

e

o RIS .
Sudhir Mallick Debalit Bagchi tul Agarwal
Partner Directpr Pirector
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 92561320 DIN: 06875768

Place : Noida (U.P.

Date : i:%/’(}.;') M




J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-S, SECTOR-6, NOIDA - 201 301 (U.P.)
TEL. 1 +91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : +91-120-424 1007
E-MAIL : taxaid@icbhaiia.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Energy Systems
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110085



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Beard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circamstances. Under section
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement

of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.




{g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For ].C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

A

R
Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date: | % / G /\Qia?




Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Energy Systems Limited on the financial statements as of and for the
year ended on March 31, 2019,

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions
of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability parinerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clauses (i) (a), (iii)
{b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are
not applicable to the Company for the curtent year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Comypanies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues
were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.




{(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues
of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has
not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii} of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause {xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
- Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForJ.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No4001111N

P
&gd ir Mallick

Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P))

Date: } '9)/@ 5/4\0)5}' :




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finmancial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ].C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 007111IN

tv
Sudhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.I".)

Date : 1}3/07“{9)‘?
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. TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Balanee Shoeef as al March 31, 2019

D e N dosisaands, sdess otherioise stufod}

e,

ASSIETS
Non-current assels
Investment property 2 36928.08 364928.08
Fiangial assets

i.  Other financial assets 3 400.00 -
Income tax assets (net) ) 4 596 343
Tolal non-current assels _ 37334.04 36931.21

Current assets
Financial assets

t.  Cash and cash equivalents 5 10930 61884
i, Other financial assets 3 22.38 -
Total current assets 131.68 618.84
Total assets 37465.72 37550.05

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital 6 38500.00 38500.00
Other equity 7 (1053.43) (965.42)
Total equity 37446.57 37534.58
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i.  Trade payables &

(a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 1418
Other current labilities 9 “ 1,29
Income tax liabilities (net) 4 7.35 -
Total current liabilities 19,15 1547
Total liabilities 19.15 1547
‘T'otal equity and liabilities 37465.72 37550.05

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbeg : 001111N

- /
p ,
T p
udhir Mallick Suresh Taneja Atul Agarwal
PPartner Director Director
Membership Neo. 80051 DIN; 00028332 DIN: 06875769 .

[Mlace : Noida (L)
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TRIVEN]T ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Stetement of Profitand Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Fovinsvands 0 Y Hoasainds, wadess afheripise steleid)

Other income 10 28.30 1.53
Total income 28.30 153
Expenses

Finance costs 11 - 35,04
Other expenses 12 108.95 8996
Total expenses 108.95 125,00}
Loss before tax {80.65) (123.47}
Tax expense

~ Current tax 13 7.36 -
- Deferred tax 13 - -
Total tax expense 7.36 .
Loss for the year (88.01) {123.47);
Other comprehensive income

A {f) [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
A (i) Income tax refating to itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss . -
B (i) ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - *
Total comprehensive income for the year (88.01) (123.47)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of T1 each

Basic 14 {0.00) {0.01)
Diiuted _ 14 (0.00) (0.0
The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number  001131N

gt
sudlir Mallick Suresh Tankj
Partner Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN: 00028332

Pace : Noida (U.P)

Agul Agarwal

DIN: 06875769




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

statement of Changes in Equity for the year endded March 31, 2019

CAH dimonits i X5 thonsands, nidess olheraise siafed)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of T 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2017 20500.00
Lquily shares issued during the year 18000.00
As at 31 March 2018 38500.00
Changes during the year 0,00
As at 31 March 2019 38500.00
B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2017 (841.95) (841.95)
Loss for the year {123.47) (123.47)
Gther comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (123.47) _ (123.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 (965.42) (965.42)
Loss for the year (88.01) (88.01)
Other comprehensive income, net of income fax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {88.01) (88.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (1053.43) (1053.43)

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financtal statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbgr : G01111N

g a5 . :
R My
Sudhir Mallick resh Tantfa Atul Agarwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN: 00028332 DIN: 06875769

Place : I\mda (U P)

Date : {2 A"%C‘M




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows Tor the year ended March 31, 2009

(A st in & ibepmnds, paless oflicrtse slated)

Cash flows frem operating activities

Loss before tax {80.65) (12347)
Adjustments for

Interest income {(28.30) {1.53)

Finance cosls - 3504
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables (2.28) 2.68

Change in other liabilitics {1.29 1.29
Cash used in operations (112.62) (85.99)
Inceme tax paid (2.83) -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (115.45) (85.99)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment property - {16914.82)
Decrease/ {increase) it cleposits with banks {400.00) 54,23
Interest received 591 418
Net cash outflow from investing activities {394.09) (16856.41)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 18000.00
Repayment of borrowings - (450.60)
Interest paid “ {89.04)
Net cash inflow from financing activities - 17,460.96
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {509.54) 518.56)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year (refer note 5) 618.84 100.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5) 109.30 618.84

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Balance as at 31 March 2017 .
Cash flows (450,00}
Finance costs aceruals -

Balance as at 31 March 2018 - -
Cash flows - )

Finance costs accruals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - -

The accompanying notes T o 22 form an integra) part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number f001111N
FR . | / b

Sudhir Mallick uresh Tane]a Atul Agarwal
Partaer Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN: 00028332 DIN: 06875769

Place : N()ldg (Ul?v

Date : ' /‘éi}




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Triveni Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8 floor, Ixpress
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201301.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation and presentation

(1) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basts under historical cost

convention, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities info current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

(£)

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumnulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
assoctated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%. '




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting pertod, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial
statements of the period {except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent Habilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

{(h) Financial assets

(i)

Clagsification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the folowing measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
¢ those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or oss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
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TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instrumentis, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(@)

(if)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its Labilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net q.fl,,jn’ the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transactioh costs .




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial

liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabiliies depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are tlwo measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

*  Amortised cost: Financial Habilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item,

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial Labilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

() Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and seftle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(k) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of incorne or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows {rom operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

N

———
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Note 2: Tavestntent property

A Mar 8 e 581 Mar 18

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross careying amount 36928.08 36928.08
Additions - B
Deletions - -
Clesing gross carrying amocnt 36928.08 36928.08

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment “ -
Depreciation charge/ impairment losses - -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment - -
Net carrying amount 36928.08 36428,08

(i) Descriplion about Investimend properly
The Company’s investment property consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar (Uttar Pradesh), India.

(iiy Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related 1o investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss (31 March 2018: T Nif}

(3#1) Restrictions on realisabitity and contractual obligations
The Company has no vesirictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual objigations to either purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements,

(iv) Fair value

The investmest property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings arcas. The property was purchased in the year
201516 al the circle rate from the Hotding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value cannol be
determined realisticaily in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject proposty.

MNote 3: Other financial assets

BN

Current i Non-gurrent ©

At amaortised cost

Interest accrued on bank deposits 22,38 - - -
Other balances:

- Fixed deposits (original maturity more than one year) - 400,00 - -
Total other financial assets 22.38 400.00 ~ -

Note 4: Income fax balances

TSR )

Current Non- ¢urrent

Income tax assets

Tax refund receivalble {net) - 5.96 - 3.13)
- 5.96 - 3.13

Income tax labilities
Provision for income tax (net) 7.35 - - -
7.36 - - -

Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

“Ua-Mar19

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in current accowsts 109.29 618.83

Cash on hand 0.01 0.01

Total cash and cash cquivalents 109,30 618.84
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Note 6: Equity share capital

e MM e BT Mar8
- Numtber of shares © 0 Amount " Number of shares e

AUTHORISED

Eauity shares of T ¥ each 540,00,000 50000.00 5,00,60,000

ESSUED, SUBSCRIBTED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 3,85,00,000 3A8500,00 3,85,00,000

(i) Movements in equity share capital

“Number of shares

As at 31 March 2017 2,05,00,000 20500.60
Eguity shares issued during the year 1,80,00,000 18000.00
As at 31 March 2018 3,85,00,000 38500.060
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 3,85,00,000 38500.00

{ii} Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only ose class of equily shares with a par value of T1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitied (o one vote per share,

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of lhe
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Moeeting,

[n the event of liguidation of the Compairy, the helders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining asscls of the Company, after meeting ail
liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in propertion to their shareholding.

{iit) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

. Ll Sh-Mardfo U B1-Mar-i8 S
Number of shares "~ 77 % holding  Number of shares = =50 holding
‘Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 3,85,00,000 100% 3,85,00,000 100%

(iv} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

B1-Mar-19 - 31-Mar-18

“ Number of shares " % holding Number of shares ™

Triveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 3,85,00,000 100% 3,85,00,000 100%

Note 7: Other equity

Retained carnings (1053.43) {965.42}
‘Total other equily {1053.43) (965.42)

(i} Retained earnings

B Mar19 331-Mar-18

Opening balance (965.42) (841.95)
L.oss for the year (88.01} (123.47)
Closing balance (1053.43) (965.42)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity sharcholders in accordance with the
reguirement of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Note §: Trade payables

L 3Mary

rent - Non-current ¢ 0 7 Curvent

Non- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)
- Total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises {refer note 20)

- Total outstanding duces of creditors other than

X . ; 11.80 - 1418 -
micro enderprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 - 14,18 -

Mote % Other liabilities

CooSlMarad L. 31Mac o

“Current 7 Non-current Current 77750 Noiw- ctirkent =5 ¢

Statutory remittances - - 1.29 -
‘Tolal other liabilitien - - 1,29

MNote T Other income

31-Mar19 1 B Mar-18
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 28.30 1.53
‘Total other income : 28.30 1.53

Naote 11: Finance costs

< 31-Mard9 s 31 Mar-18
Interest on Joan - 35.01
Other interest expense - 0.03
‘Total finance costs - 35.04

Note 12: Other expenses

33-Mar-19 - 31-Mar-18
Service charpes 70.80 70.35
Legat and professicral expenses 20,60 561
Payment to Auditers (sce (i) below) 12.24 11.80
Rales and taxes 33 1.24
Miscellaneous expenses ) 2.51 0.96
‘Total other expenses 108.95 89.96!

(i} Payment to Auditors

31 Mar19 C 31 -Mari8

Statutory audit fee 11.80 11.80
Reimburserment of expenses 0.44 -

Total payment to anditors 12,24 11.80
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Note 13: Income tax expense

Income tax recopnised in prefit or Toss

SR T-Mard 9

35-Mar-18

Current tax 7.36
Deforred tax .

‘Fotal income Lax expense recognised in profit or loss 7.36

Reconeiliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

R . o 81Mara9 31-Mar18
Loss before tax : {B0.65) {123.47)
Income tax calculated at 26.00% (2017-18: 25.75%) {20.97) (31.79)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 28,33 31,79
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 7.36 -

Nofe 14; Earnings/(loss} per share

31-Mat-18

© 2 31Mard9
Loss for the year atéributable to owners of the Company [A] (88.,01)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 3.85,00,000
Basic earnings/(loss) per equity share {face value of T1 por share) [A /8] {G.00}

iluted earnings/ {loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) A/ B) (0.00%

{123.47)
2,09,93,151
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Note 15: Related party transactions

{i} Related parties where control exists
{a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(i1} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
{a) Holding Company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

ool D Holding Compan
'Financia_l_year B Py
Nature of fransactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 - 70.80
31-Mar-18 70.35 - 70.35
Interest expense 31-Mar-19 - - -
31-Mar-18 - 35.01 35.01
Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-19 - - -
31-Mar-18 18,000.00 - 18,000.00
Repayments of capital creditors (for purchase 31-Mar-19 - - -
of investment property} 31-Mar-18 16,914.82 - 16,914.82
Repayment of borrowings (Principal) 31-Mar-19 - - -
31-Mar-18 - 450.00 450.00
Qutstanding balances
Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-19 - - -
31-Mar-18 - - -

{iv} Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s length

after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances
at the year-end are INIl
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Nate 16: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes tolal equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management is 10 maximize shareholder value. The
Company does not have significant borrowings.

The Company manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company may resort to further issue of capital to fund
expansion of business. The Company monitors capital structure through gearing ratio whicls at the end of reporting period was as follows:

‘Trade payables (note 8) 11.80 14.18
Total debt 11.80 14.18
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {note 5) {109.30) (618.84)
MNet debt (A) - -
Total equity (note 6 & note 7) 3744657 37,534.58
Total equity and net debt (B) 37,446.57 37,534.58
Gearing ratio {A/B) 0.00% 0,00%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

‘The Company is not subject to any externaily imposed capital requirements.

MNaote 17: Financial risk management
The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets are presently nominal anrd comprise of cash and bank salances. The Company's

activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

n view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supported by the Holding
Company through foans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financiaf liabitities shall mature within one year frem the reporling date,
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MNote 18; Fair value measurements

(i}  Financial instruments by category

: EVTPL/ © Amortised - FVTI.’L/ e
CEVFOCK i eost U RVITOCE

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances - 509,30 - 618,84
QOther financial assets - 22.38 - -
‘Total financial assets - 531,68 - 615.84

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 11.80 - 14.18

Total financial liabilities - 11.80 - 14.18

{(ii) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate
their fair vaiues due to their shori-term nature,
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Note 19: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent labilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: ¥ Nit},

Note 20: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

Ly B . . i .31-Mar-1
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount

(ii) Interest due on above -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 20006 (27 of 2000), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during -
each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 '

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Nate 21: Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and if replaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto,:
ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after T April 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance leases under knd AS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees ~ leases of ‘low-value’ assets {e.g., personal computers) and-
short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments {i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also
reguired to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resuiting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments), The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Campany will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019, As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the Company
is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial statements in the period of initial application.

Note 22: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements wete approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject to approval of shareholders.

As per ourreport of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and,on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbef : 0011TIN )
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Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Entertainment Limited {(“the
Company”), which comprise the Batance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a sumimary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS"}) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for QOpinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in t.o
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of '
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’'s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report trj?faetww have nothing to report in this regard.

GURIE S,

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, N\EW 092, Mabile : 99103 67918 ‘
Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 2010iq, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail; chitresh.gupta@gstexperis.net, gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in



Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materiat misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resutting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

+ Obtain an understanding of internat controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors repart to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inctuding the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controt
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

{b)

]

(d)

(e)

(f)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefl were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive income},
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B".

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197({16) of the Act,
in our apinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our gpinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2019 on its financial
position in its financial statements - refer note 2t to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner
M. No. 098247

Piace: Noida
Date: 13.05.2019




Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of Triveni Entertainment Limited on the financiai statements as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2019

1.

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loan to a company
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, in respect of which:

(a) The terms and condition of the grant of such toan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company's interest,

(b} The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments
or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations,

{(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at year-end.

The Company has not made any investment nor provided any guarantee or security. In respect of loans
granted provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, where applicable, have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost recerds under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act,

{a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues. There are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31, 2019
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax and Goods and Services Tax as at March
31, 2019 on account of any dispute except as under:

Name of Statute  Nature Assessiment | Amount in Rs.] Forum where Dispute is |
of Dues Year pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1993-94 2,83,065 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1999-00 5,331 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2001-02 46,203 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2001-02 1,13,508 Assessing Officer

The Company has not taken any loan or barrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Gevernment and
has not issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raises any money by way of initial pubtic offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is
not appiicable to the Company.




10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the management,

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and exptanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Companry has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247

Place: Noida
Date: 13.05.2019
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Foalvwe Sheet as 4l Mareh 31, 2019

(rstdaimiopints g eands, miehess athevie daled )

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property Z 38336.70 3833670
Income tax assets (net) 3 113.86 97.57
Total non-current assels 38450.56 38434.27
Current assets
Financial assets
i Cash and cash equivalents 4{a) 331.57 976.40
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4() 300.60 .
ifi. Loans 5 400.00 300,00
iv. Other financial assets & 60.52 35.08
‘T'otal current assets 1092.09 1311.48
Total assels 3954265 39745.75
BQUITY AND LEABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily share capital 7 41700.00 41700.00
Other equity 8§ {2174.49} {1969.50)
‘Total equity 39525.51 39730.50
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial abilities
i, Trade payables 9
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enderprises and small enterprises . -
(b Lotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17.14 14.75
Other current liabilities 10 - 0.50
Total current liabilities ) 17.14 15.25
Total liabilities 17.14 15,25
‘Total equity and liabilities 39542.65 39745.75
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our repert of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and os|behalf of the Board of Diredors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N
| A ,
Cbochsee =
Chifresh Gupta " Suresh Taneja Debajit Bagchi i
Partner Director Directyr [
Membership No. 98247 DIN: 00028332 DIN : 02561320 5"

Place : Noida (U.P)

Date : }3.— @S’"-;‘?D}C}



TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Al it fn S dhoands, i, stheraoise shated

Other income 11 59,74 437,90
‘Total income 59.24 437,96
Expenses

Finance cosis 12 1.14 -
Other expenses 13 263,09 261.43
Total expenses 264,23 261.43
Profit/{loss) before tax (204.99) 176.53
Tax expense:

- Current tax 14 - 64.63
- Deferred {ax 14 - -
Total tax expense - 64,63
Profit/{loss) for the year ) (204.99) 111,90

Other comprehensive income

A{D) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - “
A (i) Tncome 1ax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B {i) Items that may be reclassified te profit or loss - ”
B (i) Income tax refating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year (204.99) 11190

Earnings per equity share of ¥10 each

Basic 15 (0.05) 0.04{
Diluted 15 {0.05) .04

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financiai statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and onMchalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firnv's registration number : 617079M

@kiwﬂ?u&

FGuE ta _ Suresh Taneja
‘,\%,f Yy, Pirector

Chitresh Gupta
Partner

Membership Mo, 98247 - TN O0028332

Place : Noida (U.P.)

Datezigrbsm_,’?a)q




TRIVEN]T ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equily for the year ended March 31, 2019
(A mnennts in & thousands, widess offtioraise stated)

A. Equity share capital

fquity shaves of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2017 28700.00
Equity shares issued during the year 13000.00
As at 31 March 2018 43700.00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2019 41700.00
B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2017 {2081.40) {2081.40)
Profit for the year 111.90 111.90
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 111.90 111.50
Balance as at 31 March 2018 {1969.51) {1969.51)
Lass for the year (204.99) (204.99)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
‘T'otal comprehensive income for the year (204.99) {204.9%
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (2174.49) (2174.49)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even dale attached

For Chifresh Gupta & Associates For and op behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firnw's registration nmnber : 317079

O Mﬁu

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No., 98247

Place : Noida (U.P.}

Date : /3-g$",20)9




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2019

(AN amonnts in & howsarads, nidess olherwise stadad)

Cash flows from operating activities

I'rofit/{loss) before tax (204.99) 176.53
Adjustments for

Interest income {59.24) (437.96)

Finance costs 1,14 -
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 2.38 0.38

Change in other liabilities (0.50) 0.50
Cash used in operations (261.21) (260.55)
Income tax paid (16.28) {93.16)
Net cash outflow from eperating activities (277.49) (353.71)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment property - (18323.44)
Repayment of loans given - 1,350.00
Loans given (100.00) {100.00)
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (300.00) 4323.81
Interest received 33.80 961 17
Net cash outflow from investing activities {366.20) (11788.46)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 1300000
Interest paid (1.14) -

Net cash inflow/ {outflow) from financing activities (1.14) 13000.00
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (644.83) 857 .83
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 976.40 118.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {(refer note 4 (a)) 331.57 976.40

Reconciliation of fiabilities arising from financing activities:

Balance as at 31 March 2017
Cash flows

Finance costs accruals .

Balance as at 31 March 2018 -

Cash flows (1.14)
Finance costs accruals 1.14

Balance as at 31 March 2019 -

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration rumber : 017079N
Chitresh Gupta e

Partner
Membership No. 98247

For and pn behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Enfertainment Limited

Debajit Bagchi

Directbr
DIN : 02561320 {

Place : Noida (U}
Date : | 8 ~e§" . 26lG




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Triveni Lntertainment Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at House no. 100,
Street no, 2, Uttranchal enclave, Kamalpur, Burari, Defhi- 110084,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services,

(iil) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases in which case lease expenses are charged to profit or loss on the basis of
actual payments to the lessors.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(d) Impairment of non-financial assels

(e)

(f)

()

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be m

reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
I

eagured




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(h)

(@)

An

investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property {(caleulated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule 1l along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised asa
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent lability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial
statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made),

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the assetis no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets

@)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows. N

ST,
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

»  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

 Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
» the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
«  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

() Financial liabilities and equity instruments

@)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. o




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(ii)

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial Habilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit ox loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial Hability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
Hability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial Hability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recoghised in profit or loss.

+  Amortised cost: Financial Habilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. lrderest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs' line item.

Derecognition

Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss. ST
o




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(k)

{)

(m)

(n)

Offsetting financial instraments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




TRIVEN] ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Motes o B fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Neie 2; Investment propetty

T at-Mar19 b 31-Mar-18

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 38336.70 38336.70
Additions - -
Detetions - -
Closing gross caxrying amount 38336.70 38336.70

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment - -
Depreciation charge/impairment losses - -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment - -
Net carrying amount 38336.70 38336.70

{i} Description about investment property
‘The Company’s investment propesty consist of parcel of fand at Dibai, District Bulandshahar (Uttar Pradesh), Indin.

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and Joss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss (31 March 2018: TNil)

(iiiy Restrictions on realisabifity and contractual obligations

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its invesiment property and no contractual obligalions to either purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Pair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The property was purchased in the year
2015-16 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the falr value cannot be
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size} in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Income tax balances

31-Mar19 - ST 31-Mar18

Current Non- current Current " Nor~ current

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) - 113.86 - 97.57
“ 113.86 - 97.57

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) - : - “

Note 4: Cash and bank balances

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

31-Mac-19 - - 31-Mar-18

At amortised cost

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 331.53 976.36,
Cash on hand 0.04 0.04
Total cash and cash equivalents 331.57 976,40

equivalents

{b} Bank balances other than cash and cash

31-Mar-19 " 3i-Mar-18
At amortised cost

Balances with banks

- in fixed deposits (original maturity exceeding three months but upto one year) 300.00 -
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalentswm;; 300.00 e -
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Motes 1o the financial statements for the year endied March 31, Aty

(Al annrons in V thonsainds, wafess otherioise sfafed)

MNote 5: Loans

Co31Mar1d

CCument | - Nonecurrent 7 0 Current 5 None current

At amortised cost

H.oan to related parties (refer note 16)
- Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured 400.00 - 300.00

Total loans 400.00 - 300.00 E

Note 6: Other financial assets

SMard® o 3Masi8

Current Non- current Current Non- current

At amortised cost
Acerued interest 60.52 - 35.08 -

Total other financial assets 60.52 - 35.08

Note 7: Equity shave capital

T Mar19 n— o :..._3‘1-.{\'1“.'.-18.
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amouni

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of T 30/~ each 43,05,000 43050.40 43,05,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Lquity shares of ¥ 10/- each 41,70,000 41700.00 41,70,000 41700.00

{i) Movements in equity share capital

) : MNumber of shares S Amount
As at 31 March 2017 28,70,000 28700.00
Eaquity shares issued during the year 13,600,000 13000.,00
As at 31 March 2018 41,70,000 4170000
Movement during the vear - -
As at 31 March 2019 41,70,000 41700.00

{ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of € 30/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Comparty, the holdess of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting
all liabilities and distribution of afl preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.

(i) Dretails of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar19 . - . ‘31-Mar-18

Number of shares Number of shares Y holding

% holding

Triveni Engineering & industries Limited (Holding Company) 41,70,000 100% 41,706,000 100%

{iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

- 31-Ma-19

. S BMandB
Number of shares % holding Number of shares ™~ o holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) : 41,70,000 100% 41,70,000 100%
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Note 8: Other equity

31-Mar-19
Retained earnings {2174.4% (1969.50)
Total other equity (2174.49) (1969.50}

(i} Retained earnings

Opening balance (1969.50) (2081.40)

Profit/ (loss) for the year (204.99) 111.90
Closing balance (2174.49) {1969.50)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equily shareholders in accordance with the
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013,

Note %: Trade payables

CdLMard9 o Bl-Macd8

Current -7 ‘Nomecuprent = Current - """ Non~ current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 22)

- Todal eutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

‘Total trade payables 17.14 - 14.75 -

17.14 - 14.75 -

Note 10: Other Habilities

:.'31_-Ma_r-19 - . : ”'31-M€.1r-'l__8. - S

" Current - Nmi- current . ‘Current . Non- cument
Statutory remittances - - Q.50 -
Total other liabilities - - 050 -

MNote 11 Other income

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 31.56 313.75
[aterest income from loans {at amortised cost) 27.68 124.21
‘Total other income 59.24 437.96

Note 12: Finance costs

31-Mar-19 ~° ° 3L.Mar-18

Interest on TS 1.14 -

Total finance costs
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Note 13: Other expenses

- H-Mar-19 31-Mar18
Rent 138.60 132.00/
Service charges 70.80 70.35
Legal and professional expenses 30.68 16.65
Payment to Auditors {see (i) below) 14.75 1512
Rates and taxes 4,54 29.89
Misceilaneous expenses 372 342
Total other expenses 263.09 26143

(i) Payment to Audilors

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Statutory audit fee 14.75 15,12
Total payment to auditors 14.75 15,12

Note 14: Income tax expense

income tax recognised in profit or loss

31-Mar-19 -5 31-Mar-18

Current tax
In respect of the current year - 54.35
tix respect of the prior years - 10.28
- 64.63
Deferred tax - -
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - 64.63

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

L : . : - 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Profit before tax (204.99) 176.53
Income tax cafculated at 26% (2017-18: 25.75%) (53.30) 4546
Lffect of expenses that are non-deductible in determining taxable profit 53.30 8.89
Changes in estimates related fo prior years - 10.28]
Total income tax expense recogrised in profit or loss “ 64.63)

Note 15: Earnings per share

C31-Mar39

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (204.99)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS {B} 43,70,000

L 31Mar-18

Basic earnings per equity share {face value of € 10 per share) [A/B] {0.05)
Diluted earnings per equity share (face value of T 10 per share} [A/B] (0.05}
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Note 16: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where conlrol exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(ii} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
(a) Holding Company

Triveni BEngineering & Industries Limited (TERL)

{1} Fellow Subsidiaries
Svastida Projects Limited (SPL)
Triveni Industries Limiled (TIL}
Triveni Engineering Limited (TEL}
Triveni Energy Systems Limited (TESL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Financial year

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries ..

Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 - - - - 70.80 §
31-Mar-18 70.35 - - - - 70.35
Interest income 31-Mar-19 - - 27.68 - “ 27.68
31-Mar-18 - 35.01 19.17 35.01 35.01 124.21
Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-19 - - - - “ -
31-Mar-18 13000.00 - - - 1300000
Loan given 31-Mar-19 - - 100.00 - 100.00
31-Mar-18 - - 100.60 - - 100.00
Repayment of foans given 31-Mar-19 - - - - -
31-Mar-18 - 450.00 - 450,00 450.00 1350.00
Repayments of capital creditors (for 31-Mar-19 - - - . - -
purchase of investment property} 31-Mar-18 18323.44 - - - - 18323.44
Qutstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-19 - - 460,52 - - 460,52
31-Mar-18 - - 335.08 - 335.08

(iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest income, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into consideration
market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash.

The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties for the year ended 31 M

2018,

arch 2019 and 31 March
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Note 17: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management is to
maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes i economic conditions. The Company may resorl {o further
issue of capital Lo fund expansion of business. The Company manitors capital structure through gearing ratio which at the end of reporling period
was as follows:

T31-Mar19 - 31-Mar18

‘Trade payables {note 9) 17.14 14.75
Total debt 17.14 14.75
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4(a)) (331.57) 97640y
Net debt {A) - -
Total equity (note 7 & 8) 39525.51 39730.50
Total equity and net debt (B) . 39525.51 39730.51
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0% 0%

No changes were made in fhe objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

The Comypany is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank balances and loans. The
Company's aclivities does nol expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital
infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company have been [rom lime to time been

supported by the Holding Company through loans or through equity infasion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year
from the reporting date.
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Note 19 : Fair value measurements

(i} Financial instruments by category

CRVTPY

FVTOCK - o cost = 0 FVIC

Financial assefs

Cash and bank balances - 63157 “ 976.40
Loans - 400.00 . 300,00
Other financial assets - 60.52 - 35.08
‘Total financial assels ’ - 1092.09 - 1311.48

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 17.14 - 14.75

Total financial liabilities - 17.14 “ 14.75

{i} The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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Note 28 : Commitments
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: T Nil),

Note 21: Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Conlingent liabilities

- 31-Mar-19 0 31-Mar-18

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding interest and penaity):
Income tax 448,11 448.11

Contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no material contingent assets as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: TNl

Note 22: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Hased on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2008, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
as at the end of the year

{i) Principal amount

(it} Inderest due on above -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during - -
cach accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the smail enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible .
expenditure under section 23 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 23: Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yet offective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective,

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corperate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and it replaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto, Ind AS 116 is efiective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lossees to account for all leases under a singte on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance jcases under Ind AS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees -~ leases of ‘low-value® assets (e.g., personal computers)
and shott-term leases (i.c., leases with a lease term of 12 months or foss). At the commencement date of a Jease, a jessee will recognise a liability fo make
lease payments (i.c., the lease Hability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease texm (i.¢., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the Iease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upen the occurrence of certain events {e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future iease
payments resuliing from o change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assct.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019, As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the
Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial statemets in the peried of initial
application.

MNote 24: Approval of financial statements
The financial staternents were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject fo approval of sharcholders,

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N /x’"
choahez\ AL
Chitresh Gupta i %%%NSuresh Taneja Debajit Bagchi
Partner ;{\0;»»»‘“"“‘”"‘“* f‘i‘?hh;"\'Dircctor Direct,
Membership No. 98247 [ ooy EW\J{?DH\: 00028332 DIN : 02561320
- 5 @/{}\xfﬂ
Place : Noida (U.P)) & ! o

Date : /3_‘ 05’,20 }q ) f‘iRN:Gf?G?QEﬁ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Sugar Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Sugar Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing ocur opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(dyIn our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.




{g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

it. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

"

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P. )

- £

Date: | & / o N;/ \\ uﬁi




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Sugar Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
on March 31, 2019.

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the
provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i){c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (i) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, clauses (i) (a), (iif) (b) & (iif) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
{Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory
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dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and
has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause {xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’'s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report} Order, 2016 are not
applicable. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN

M l—v
udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.
Date: | ?;)/z:‘; 8/20i9




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Sugar Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion oi the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For ]J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 00}1111N

ok
udhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : H;)/OS/Q Q‘ﬂ E
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TRIVENT SUGAR LIMITED

cbas ab March 31, 209

Current assefs
Financial assets

i, Cashand cash equivalents 2 (a) 7.58 61,45
ji. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2 (b) - 50.00,
iii, Other financial assets 3 - 2.23
Total current assets 7.58 113,68
Tolal assets 7.58 113.68

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Lquily share capital 4 500.00 500,00
Other equity 3 (504.67) (399.96)
Total equity (4.67) 100.04
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial Habilities

i. ‘Trade payables 6

(a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

{b) tota outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 11.80 11,80
Cther curvent liabilities 7 - 0.50
Income Lax liabilities (net) 8 0.45 1.34
Total current liabilities 12.25 13.64
Tota] liabilities 12.25 13.64
{Tolal equity and liabilities 7.58 113.68

The accompanying notes ¥ to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Faor J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firim's registration numgber : 001111N

i

P A%
Sudhir Mallick S, 5. Walia
Partner Director
Membership No. 80051 DI 04561320 DN 00256584

Place : Noida (U.P.}

Dale:i% O /‘Qfﬁ%
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Stedenwnt of Profit and Lox

R ESTTIN

srow the year ended March 31, 2009

o e it it}

Other income

Total income 172 5,19
Expenses

Othor expenses 10 10%.98 87.28
Total expenses 105.98 87.28
Loss before tax (104.26) (82.09)
Tax expense:

- Current tax 11 045 1.48
- PDeferred tax 11 - -
Total tax expense ) 0.45 1.48
Loss for the year {104.71) (83.57)

Other comprehensive income

A{3) ltems thal will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss -

B (i) Hems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - .
B (i} income tax relating to items thal may be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -

Total comprehensive income for the year (104.71) {83.57)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each

i Basic 12 (021 {0.17)
Diluted 12 0.21) (0.17)

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numper : 001111N

l & s
Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi S. 5. Walia
Pariner Directoy Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589

Place : Noida (U.I)

Date : i5/9 ﬂ/‘%i}fq ‘

"3
”3




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Sltenent of Changpes in Fauity (or the yoar ended March 31, 20149

Lo wrtdese olhreriniae siatid )

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of T1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2017 500.00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2018 500,00
Changes during the year “
As al 31 March 2019 500,00
B. Other equity

Baiance as at 31 March 2017

(316.39) { )
Loss for the year {83.57) (83.57)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {83.57) {83.57)
Balance as at 3T March 2018 _ (399.96) {399.96)
Loss for the year (104.71) (104.71)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (104.71) {104.71)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (504.67) {504.67)

The accampanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 001111N

a

Sudhir Mallick

S. 5. Walia
Partrer Director
Membership No. 80051 DiN : 02561320 DIN: 0029658?
i
Place : Noida (UF") i

: D




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

erent of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

et e O e, srdess etlierieise slited)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (104.26) (82.09)
Adjustments for

Interest income (1.72) (5.19)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in other Habilities (0.50) 0.50

Change in trade payables - 0.30
Cash used in operations {106.48) (86.48)
Income tax paid (1.34) (2.96)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (107.82) (89.44)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks 50.00 57.38
Interest received 3.95 8.28

‘ Net cash inflow from investing activities 53.95 65.66

Cash flows from financing activities . -
Net caéh inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {53.87) (23.78)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2(a)) 6145 85.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 2(a)) 7.58 61.45

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from cash
flows and non-cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 o 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Far }.CBhalle & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Chartered Accountants
. pa Y
N
/ (2

Firm's registration nymber : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi 8. 5. Walia
Partner Directo} Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 PIN : 00296589

A

MEJA

Place - Noida (U.P.}
Date :!5/0 %fﬁi&
P

"
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Triveni Sugar Limited (“the Company”} is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phase
11 extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

{(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-cutrent as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the pertod in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{d) Impairment of non-financial assets

®

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax Hability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

GY Provisions are recagnised whern the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(i) A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(iif)

@)

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(g} Financial assets

(B

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
+  those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

«  Amortised cost; Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

 TFair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

*+  Tair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criterfa for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments,




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
+ retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

()

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financtal liabilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial Hability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
fiabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVIPL
when the financial Hability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

+  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(i)

{k)

M

are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instraments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity, No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial lability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Ry

e
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Naote 2: Cash and bank balances

() a31 and cash equivalents

31-Mar-19 . - 31-Mar18

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 7.98 61.45

Total cash and cash equivalents 7.58 61.45

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 31-Mar19 S0 31-Mar-18

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed depesits (original matarity exceeding three months but upto one year) “ 50.00

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 50.00

Note 3: Other financial assets

. '.31-Mar-19 N ——

Current “ 7 Non-current

At amortised cost

[nterest accrued - - 2.23

‘Total other financial assets - - 2.23

Note 4: Equity share capital

Number of N "~ Number of
o S oo Amount R
shares Lo : shares -
AUTHORISED
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each ) 5,00,000 500.00 5,00,000 500.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of T 1 each 5,00,000 500.00 5,060,000 500.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

: 'quber of ik
e minae e . shares
As at 31 March 2017 5,00,000
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 5,00,000 500.00

Movement during the year - .
As at 31 March 2019 5,00,000
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(ii) Terms and vights altached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of T 1/- per share. The holder of equity shases is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Divectors s
subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company,
after meeting all Habilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion te their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

- 3LMard9 o U 3LMarsis

Number of " Whholding Numsl;:z:rzi o

shares

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

e 5,00,000 100.00% 4,99,950 99.99%
Jompany)

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31-Mar-19 L 31-Mapd8

Number of - % holding Numsl;le:rzi

shares

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

5,00,000 100.00% 4,99,950 99.99%
Company)

Note 5: Other equity

“31-Mar-19 0 31-Mar-i8
(399.96)
Total other equity o167 T

Retained earnings (504.67)

(i) Retained earnings

AR R T R L - - 31-Mar-19 - 31-Mar-18
Opening balance ‘ {399.96) (316.39)
Loss for the year (104.71) (83.57)
Closing balance (504.67) {399,96)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance
with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013,

Note 6 : Trade payables

: Si;r{fjar-fi9_: . ) ',3_1-M_a_r~18_' -

S Current - Non- current - Current 7 - Non-current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (refer note 18)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

. . 11.80 - 11.80 -
enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 - 11.80 -
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Note 7 : Other liabilities

- 31-—Ma1-19 PR 31«M.\1~18

“Current 7 Non-current - Current -~ “Non- current -

Statutory remittances - 0.50 -

Total other Habilities - 0.50 -

Note 8: Income tax balances

_'31-Ma'r-19 — : IISI-I-IS'I-}\__/'Iar-;IB_

Cuwrrent Non- current " Current -~ Non- current
Income fax assels
Tax refund recetvable (net)

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 0.45 - 1.34 -

0.45 - 1.34 -

Note 9 : Other income

~31-Mar-19. . - 31-Mar-18.
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 1.72 5.19
‘Total other income 1.72 5.19

Note 10: Other expenses

“-31-Mar19 -
Service charges ) 70.80 70.35
lLegal and professional expenses 20.06 3.63
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 12.22 11.80
Rates and taxes 214 0.44
Misceilaneous expenses 0.76 1.06
Total sther expenses 105.98 87.28
: (i) Payment to Auditors

SR RESEE T s Mar9 e
Statutory audit fee 11.80
Reimbursement of expenses 0.42

Total payment to auditors 12,22
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Note 11 : Income tax expense

B-Mar19 0 31-Mar-18

Current tax
In respect of the current year 0.45 1.34
In respect of the prior years - 0.14
0.45 1.48
Deferred tax - -
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (.45 1.48

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

T . Sl B1-Mard9 s 31-Mar8
Loss before tax (104.26) (82.09)
Income tax expense caleutated at 26.00% (2017-18: 25.75%) (27.11) (21.12)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 27.56 2247
Changes in estimates related to prior years . - 0.14
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 0.45 1.48

Note 12: Earnings/(loss) per share

31 Mar-18

31-Mar-19
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] {104.71)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B) 500,000
Basic earnings/ {loss) per equity shave (face value of T1 per share) [A/B] 0.21)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share {face value of ¥1 per share) [A/B) 0.21)

(83.57)
5,00,000

0.17)
{017}
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Note 13: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TELL), Holding Company

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
{a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(iti) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

olding ompq.ny * Total
TEIL 1 B

‘ Financial year

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 70.80
31-Mar-18 70.35 70.35

Outstanding balances

Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-19 - -
31-Mar-18 - -

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related patties (viz. service charges) are made on terms which are at
arm’s length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and
adjustment thereof, The outst
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Note 14: Capital management

The Company is yet to start business aclivities and hence, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period is not indicative of the
capital structure which the Company may like to adopt after commencement of the business, The resultant capital structure will
appropriately be decided based on the business requirements and the industry benclimarks.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

Note 15: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank balances. The
Company's aclivilies does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and
capital infusion from the Holding Company.

in view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant, The operations of the Company during early stages of business
wiil be supported by the Holding Company through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. The Company's financial liabiiities
comprise of trade payables which is expected to be settled within one year from the end of reporting year.
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Note 16: Fair value measurements

(i} Tinancial inslruments by category

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances - 7.58 - 111.45
Other financial assels - - - 2.23
Total financial assets - 7.58 - 113.68

Tinancial liabilities
Trade payables - 11.80 - 151.80

‘Fotal financial liabilities - 11.80 - 11.80

(i} The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature,
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Note 17: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no materiat commitment, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as a4 31 March 2019 (21 March 2018 TNl

Note 18 : Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

i IR b . o P . S 3-Mar-19 0 3E-Mardd|
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
as at the end of the year

(i} Principai amount

{ii) Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the bayer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Mote 19 : Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's {inancial statements aze disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and it replaced Ind A5 17 Leases, inclzding appendices
thereto. Ind AS 1%6 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet mode! similar to the accounting for
finance feases under Ind AS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of “low-value’ assets {e.g. personai computers)
and short-term leases {Le., leases with a lease term of 12 months or Jess). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
Jease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term {t.e., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the [ease Hability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change i future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessce will generatly recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease Hability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019, As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the

Company s in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial statements in the period of initial
application.

Note 20: The accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March 2019 are § 504.67 thousands which have exceeded the paid up capital of
Z 500 thousands. The Company is yet to commence its business. The losses till now are wholly funded by the Holding Company and it has further
assured 1o continue providing financial support to the Company as long as it continues to remain as subsidiary to ensure that the Company continues to
operale as a going concern and is able to meet its liabilities as and when they fail due for payment over the next 12 months. Accordingly, the accounts
have been prepared on going concern basis. Further there are no items of assets in respect of which provision for impairment is required.

Note 21: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject to approval of shareholders.

As per our repert of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For gnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numnifer : 00T111N

M ‘r, /{, AR |
b udhir Mallick ' Debajft Bagehi 5. 5. Walia
Partner Directgr Director
Membership No. 80053 _ DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589

Place : Noida (U.P)

Date : § -ss/ﬁx/w




Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial staternents of Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company"},
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss {inctuding Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS™} and other accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
farch 31, 2019, the toss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo.r our
audit epinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

COur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ~f
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing {o report in this regard.

Head Office : U-1194A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092, Mobile : 99103 67918 "o, I /
Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansai Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 2010 ﬁgﬂgsg;gf-?lnma
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: chitresh.oupta@gstexperis.net, gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in




Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibitity aiso includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
inctudes our opinien, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
cotlusion, forgery, intentionat amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
and refated disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

() The Batance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B".

{g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act,
in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section
197{16) ¢f the Act are not applicable for the year.

{h}y With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us;




i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position,

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.,

iit. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

CA Chitresh Gupta

Partner

M. No, 098247

Place: Noida
Date: 13.05.201%




Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of Svastida Projects Limited on the financial statements as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2019

1.

10.

11

12.

13,

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under ctause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explapations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited Uability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (iii}(a), clause (iif}{b) and ctause (iii){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans nor provided any guarantee or security and hence provisions of
section 185 of the Act are not applicabte. In respect of investments made, provisions of section 186 of
the Act have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Goads and Services Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues. There are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31, 2019
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax and Goods and Services Tax as at March
31, 2019 on account of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Government and
has not issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the management.

. According to the information and explanaticns give to us and based on our examination of the records of

the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

i

4
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14, According to the informaticn and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into nen-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Ty
pia g
K‘Q\?‘} Ve g -

Firm Registration Number: 017079N

Partner

M. No. 098247

Place: Noida
Date: 13.05.2019




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reparting of Svastida Projects Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internat financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financiat
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controts over financial reporting inctuded obtaining an understanding of internat financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer’s
judgment, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financiat Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externat
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internat financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Batance Sheat as af March 31, 20049

fAdl mnononts ar N Hhensaids, aotess oifieriede staded]

ASSETS
MNon-current assels
Financial assets

i, Investments 2 20000.00 20000.00
Income tax assels (nel) 3 2.92 1.14
Total non-current assets 2000292 2000114
Current assets
Financial assets

i. Cash and cash equivalents 4 (a) 127.56 496.30

ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) 369.62 114.52

iii. Other financial assets 5 22,82 5.10
Total current assets 520,00 615.92
Total assets 2052292 20617.06

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Fquily share capital 6 21500.00 2150000
Other equity 7 (996.80) (900.79
Total equity 20503.20 2059921
LIABILITEES

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. 'Trade payables 8

(a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises “ -

(h) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises 1210 16.56
Other current liabilities 9 - .29
Income tax liabilities (net) 3 7.62 -
‘Total current liabilities 19.72 17.85
Total labilities 19.72 17.85
Total equity and liabilities : 2052292 20617.06

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : §17079N

Chitresh Gupta T Satvinder Singh Walia
Partrer Director
Membership No. 98247 DIN : 00296589 DIN : 02561320

Place : Noida (U.P.}

Date : /3-«05’"—0?019




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Frofitand Loss for the year ended Mareh 37, 20019
AN apnets i & thowsainds, wnless aflerieise slated)

Other income 10 29.30

Total income 29.30 8.23
Expenses

Finance costs 11 - 35.4
Other expenses 12 1317.69 ] 92.41
Total expenses 117.69 127 45
Loss before tax (88.39) (119.22)
Tax expense:

- Current tax 13 7.62 -
- Deferred tax 13 - .
Total tax expense 7.62 -
Loss for the year ‘ 96.01) (119.22)
Other comprehensive income

A (i) Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss “ -
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B () Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reciassified to profit or loss - .
Qther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {96.01) {119.22)

Farnings/{loss) per equity share of T 1 each
Basic i4 (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted 14 (0.003 (0.01)

The accompanying notes 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial stalements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants i
Firm's registration number ; 017079N ‘,,sf'“/‘
Cb “;( %M {;J/md
Chitresh Gupta g/ JD S~ Satvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Partner Director Directbr
Membership No. 38247 DIN @ (296589 D3N

2561320
\

Place : Noida (U.P.)

Date : }3 95",29}?




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Chaniges in Bguily for the year ended Mareh 37, 2019
(AN mmounts e Y thowsnnds, anless otherause sialed)

A. Eqquity share capital

Equily shares of €1 each issued, subscribed and (ully paid up

As at 31 March 2017 :
Changes during the year 1000.00
As at 31 March 2018 21500.00
Changes during the year "
As at 31 March 2019 21500.00
B, Other equity

Balance as at 31 Marc (781.57) (781.37)
Loss for the year (119.22) (119.23)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {119.22) (119.22)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 {900.79} £900,79)
Loss for the year (96.01) . {96.01)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (96.01) {96.01}
Balance as at 31 March 2019 {996.80) {996,80)
The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these {inancial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants !
Firm's registration number : 017079N
| D
ol M 4
Chitresh Gupta; Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director i ",L R
Maombership No. 88247 DIN : (0296589 DIN G 0P561320 Sedd s 1Y
o

Place: Noida {U.F.)

Pate: | $-057.,20/9
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SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(AT amonnts i & thousmids, unless otherivise siated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax (88.39) {119.22}
Adjustments for

Iikerest income {(29.30) {8.23)

Finance costs - 35.04
Working capital adjustments

Change in trade payables (4.46) 5.06

Change in other liabilities (1.29) 1.29
Cash generated from /{used in) operations (123.44) {86.06)
Income tax (paid)/ refund {1.69 2,16
Net cash outflow from operating activities (125.13} (83.904

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in preference shares (Fellow Subsidiary) - (20000.00)
Capital advance received back - 20000.00
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (255.10) {7.14)
Interest received 11.49 7.28
Net cash inflow from investing activities (243.61) 0.14

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 1000.00
Repayment of short term borrowings - (450.00)
Interest paid - {89.04)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities - 460.96
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {368.74) 377.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 496.30 119.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 127.56 496.30

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Balance as at 31 March 2017 X 54.00
Cash flows (450.00) (89.04)
Firance costs accruals - _ 35.04
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - -
Cash flows - -
Finance costs accruals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - -

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

" For Chitresh Gupta & Assoriates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N e
L
s
C R @&M_.,h, (L
Chitresh Gupta Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director

Membership No. 98247 DIN : 00296589 DIN 102561320

Place : Noida (U.P.)

Date : } 7~ 05 90! 9




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phase
11 extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305.

Note 1; Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@)

Basis of preparation and presentation

)

(i)

(i)

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ({Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Compantes Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention except for investments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a Liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or Hability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets (see note

1(Y).

Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule 111 to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount on inittal recognition.
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(<)

(e)

(6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended, Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
* aresult of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to seftle the present obligation. When some or all of the

i
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(iif)

(iv)

economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the recetvable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
yemote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(g) Financial assets

()

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
«  those to be measured subseguently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For assets in the nature of debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

«  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income

/f;om these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
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+  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCIL.

+  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
« the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
+  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

{i)

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting alt of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
« those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.
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Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial lability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial lability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

«  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial Labilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line itern.

{iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legaily enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insclvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty. S
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

()

(k)

(m)

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;
» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
+  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
{0 take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes Lo the financial staleswenis for the year ended Margh 3, 20y
fiafedd)

FAl meinnfa iy ¥ thowsamieds, wndess alllerisise ¢

Note 2: Non-current investinents

T at-Mar-19

At Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Unquoted Investments (fully paid-up}

Investments in Preference shares

2,00,00,000 (31 March 2018 ; 2,00,00,000} 10 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable

Preference share of £ 1/~ each of Triveni Engineering Limited (Fellow 2000000 20000.00
Subsidiary)

Total non-current investments 20000.00 20000.00
‘Total non-current investinents 2000006 20000.00
Apgregate amount of quoled investments - -
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investment - “
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 20000.00 20000.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -

Note 3: Income tax balances

FiMar19 . .o 3tMard8

Cuzrrent “Nott- current © S Current

Income fax assefs

- Nog- current .-

Tax refund receivable (tiet) - 292 - 1.14
- 2.92 - 1.14

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 7.62 - - -
7.62 - - -

Note 4; Cash and bank balances

(a} Cash and cash equivalents )
= R 31-Mar-19

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 127.56

31-Mar-18

496.30

Total cash and cash equivalents 127,56

496.30

(k) Bank balances 0§-er than cash and ca&hquivaent&

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- infixed deposits (original maturity exceeding three months but upto one year) 369,62

114.52

Total bantk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 369,62

114,52

Mote 5: Other financial assets

Current Non- cutrent * Current

Atamortised cost

Interest accrued on bank deposits 22.82 - 5.10

3-Mar19 o 21~Mar18'

N(m— umcn{'

Total other financial assets 22,82 - 510

\\/‘

ol /
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Note 6: Equity share capital

. B1-Mar-19 ALMar-18.0:

Number of shares 57 - Antount - Number of shares

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 4,00,00,000 40000.00 4,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of T 1 cach 2,15,00,000 21500.60 2,15,00,00¢

(i} Movements in equity share capital

AR P : N . © Number of shares

As at 31 March 2017 2,05,00,000 2050000
Fquity shares issued during the year 10,00,000 100,00
As at 31 March 2018 2,15,00,000 21500.00]
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 2,15,04,000 21500,00

(i} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par vatue of T 1/~ per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeling all
Habilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharehelding.

{i1i) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

H-Mar-19 ;. P SEOEE
Number of shares % holding Number of shares

St BlMardB T
i g holding
‘Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Helding

2,15,00,000 2,15,60,000
Company)

{iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 R
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
Trivent Bngineering & Industries Limited (Holding oy e
Triveni Bngineering & Industries Limited {Holding 2.15,00,000 100% 2,15,00,000 L60%
Company)
Note 7: Other equity

3LMar19 . 31-Mar38
Retained carnings {996.80) (900.79)
Total other equity (996.80) {900.79)

(i) Retained earnings

. o 31-Mar-19 S B -Mar-18
Opening balance (900.79) (781.57)
Loss for the year (96.01) {119.22)

Closing balance (996.50) {600.79)

Retained camnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance with the
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. -
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Note 8: Trade payables

31-Mar-19

Current

CBMardB
Current S Nobe currentt

Naon-~ current

Trade payabies (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises {refer note 20}

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micre enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 12,10 - 16.56 -

12.10 - 16.56 -

Mote & Other liabilities

31-Mar-19 o . i 31-Mar-18 . f
Current © Non- cunrent ) Current 07 Non- current
Statulory remittances . - 1.29 -
Total other liabilitics - - 1.29 -

Note 10: Other income

AL-Mar-19 Tl 3 Man18
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 29.21 8.23
Interest income from others 0.09 -
‘Total other income 29.50 8.23

Note 11: Finance costs

T BEMard9 T B Mards
Interest on toan - 3B.01
Other interest expense - -0.03

Total finance costs - 35 ,Uéi




SVASTINA PROJECTS LIMITED

wended Mareh A1, 2009
atatesd)

= b the financial statements for

AN amonnts in ¥ tonesands snless ofherio

Naote 12; Other expenses

Ca-Mardy oo 31-Mard8
Service charges 70.80 70.385
Legal and professional expenses 28.91 7.38
Payment to Auditors {see (i} below) ' 1210 1210
Hates and taxes 5.14 1.84
Misceilancous expenses 0.75 0.74
Total other expenses 117.69 92.41

(i) Payment to Auditors

S : . 3-Mar19 - 0 31-Mar14
Statutory audit fee 12,10 12,10
Total payment to auditors 12.1¢ 12.10

Naote 13: Income tax expense

lacome tax recognised in profit or Joss

31-Mar-19 2 3R Mar-i8

Current lax 7.62 E
Deferred tax - -
‘Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 7.62 -

Reconcilintion of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

FLMar19 - 3 Mar-18

Loss before tax (88.39) (119.22)
Income lax calculated at 26.00% (2018: 25.75%) {(22.98) (30.70)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 30,60 30.70
‘T'otal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 7.62 -

Note 14: Earnings/{loss) per share

31-Mar-19 “31-Mar-18

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] {96.01)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ dituted EPS 8] 2,15,00,000

Basic carnings/{luss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B} (0.00)
Diluted carnings/ {loss) per equity share (face value of T 1 per share) [A/B] {0.00)
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Note 15: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

{ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL}
{b) Fellow Subsidiaries
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)
Triveni Engineering Limited (TEL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and cutstanding balances:

. . Holding Company ~ " Fellow Subsidiaries
Financial year . .

TENL
Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-19 70.80 - - 70.80
31-Mar-18 70.35 - - 70.35
Interest expense 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - 35.01 - 3501
Investments in Preference shares 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - - 20000.00 20000.00
Issue of Equity Share Capital 31-Mar-19 - - - “
31-Mar-18 1000.00 - - 1000.00
Capilal advance received back 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 20000.00 - - 20000.00
Repayment of borrowings 31-Mar-19 - - - -
{Principal) 31-Mar-18 - 450.00 - 450.00
Oulstanding balances
Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-19 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - - - -

{(iv) Terms & conditions;

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into
consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are T Nil.
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Note 16: Capital management

The Company is yet to start business activities and hence, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period is not indicative of
the capital structure which the Company may like to adopt after commencement of the business. The resultant capital structure
will appropriately be decided based on the business requirements and the industry benchmarks.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 17 : Financial risk management

The Company’s financial Habilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank
balances and investments in preference shares of a fellow subsidiary. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk
and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. Financial liabilities mainy include trade payables, The
operations of the Company duting early stages of business will be supported by the Holding Company through loans or
through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting date.
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Note 18: Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instrements by category

oL a1Mardy

_ 3-Mar18 .
FVTPL® -5 Amortised cost

CEVTPLE Y Amortised cost

Financial agsets
Investments 20000,00 - 2000000 -
Cash and bank balances - 497,18 - 610.82
Other financial assets - 2282 - 510
Total financial assels 20000.04 520,00 20400.00 615.92
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 12,10 - 16.56
Total financial linbilities - 1210 - 16,56

*Manglatority required 1o be measured at FVTPL. There is no financial instrument which is destgnated as FYTPL.

(if) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in delermining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and
measured at fair vadue, To provide an indication about the reilability of the inpuls wsed in determining fair value, the Company has

classified ils financial instruments into the Usree levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

WoteNo - Teveil ~ Levelz " ° Leveld ™

As at 31 March 2019
Financial assets

- Invesiments in Preference shares at FVTPL (Unquoted} ‘ 2 - - - 20000.00 20000.00
- - 20000.00 20000.00
Financial liabilities - - - -
As at 31 March 2018
Financial assels
- Investmenis in Preference shares at FYTPL (Unquoted) - - 20000.00 20000.00
- - 20000.00 20000.00

Financial linbilities - - - -

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted unadjusted market prices in active markets {or identical
asseds or Habllities, This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded
in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litde as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instvument are observable, the instrument is included in levei 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Jevel 3.

There are ne transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(iif) Valuation technigue used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the fair value of investment in preference shares of a fellow

subsidiary company. The fair valuation is determined using discounted cash flows technique, Resulting fair value estimates are included in
jevel 3.

{iv) Valuation processes
The Finance team headed by Group CFO has requisite knowledge and skills in valuation of financial instruments.

{v} Fair value of financial assefs and Habilities that are not measured at fair value {but fair value disclosures are required)

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised it the financial statements
approximate their fair values mostly due to their short-term nature. :

NWP-‘.«;.».-.—.WW e
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Note 19 : Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no malerial commitment, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: ¥ Nil).

Note 20: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

i 31-Mar-19

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year; as at the end of the year

() Principal amount

(i) Inlerest due on above . .

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Developiment
Act, 2006 {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during . -
cach accounting year.

F'hye amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -

Note 21: Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends {o adopt these standards when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and it reptaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto.
Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet modei similar to the accounting for
finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value’ assets (.8, personal computers) and
short-term leases {i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments {i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be
also required to remeasure the lease liability upen the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future Jease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset,

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from Aprif 1, 2019. As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements, the
Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesatd standard and the impact on its financial statements in the period of initial
application.

Note 22: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2019 subject to approval of shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants }
Firm's registration number : 017079N T

LA @,{ S

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Satvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Director

Director
DIN : 02561320

Place : Noida (U.P)

Date : ]3_ bs“»o?bfci
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the period from 12 June 2018 to 31 March 2019, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and loss
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the period from 12
June 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of ouraudit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. gzsw%m &
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
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*+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account. : 7
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d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

| In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
" us, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the period. Hence
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts. The Company does
not have long term derivative contracts;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The reporting on the disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the period ended 31 March 2019.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0907\%‘3@@%;\

ed Aceot

Membership No..093214

Place: Noida
Date: May 10, 2019
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure as referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the period from 12 June 2018 to 31 March 2019, we
report that:

iii.

Vi,

vil.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not hold any property, plant and equipment
during the period. Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(i) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not hold any inventory during the period.
Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the requirements under the paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) & 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or security under section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph 3 (v) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, requirement to maintain cost records
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148 of the Act is not applicable to the Company during the
period.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, income tax, service tax,
custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and services tax and other material statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable. According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the Company there
were no undisputed aforesaid statutory dues payable as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, there were no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
goods and services tax, duty of excise, duty of customs or value added tax which have not beefi
deposited on account of any dispute. A
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not borrow any
amount during the period from financial institution, bank and government and has not issued
any debentures. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the period.
The term loan has been applied for the purpose for which it was raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees being
noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been informed of such case by the
management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the
Company. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

ForS. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Ng.

Yogesh K. G
Partner

Place: Noida
Date: May 10, 2019
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"Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED"

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MATHURA WASTEWATER
MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company") as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the period from 12 June 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures th .
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of charniges in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

y o,

Yogesh K. Gupt/

Partner
Membership No..093214

Place: Noida
Date: May 10, 2019




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Deferred tax assests (net) 3 0.21
Income tax assets (net) 4 50.13
Other non-current assets 5 28.67
Total non-current assets 79.01
Current assets
Financial assets

i, Cash and cash equivalents 6 (a) 87.23

ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6 (b) 415.00

iii. Other financial assets 7 2,01
Other current assets 5 2287.36
Total current assets 2791.60
Total assets 2870.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 8 0.30
Other equity 9 (13.14)
Total equity (12.84)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 10 80.00
Total non-current liabilities 80.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Trade payables 11

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 222

ii, Other financial liabilities 12 1.32
Other current liabilities 13 2799.91
Total current liabilities 2803.45
Total liabilities 2883.45
Total equity and liabilities 2870.61

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S § Kothari Mehta & Compan

Place : Noida (U.P)
Date : May 10, 2019

DIN: 00029028

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

W

Nikhil Sawhney

e
Ne
. K. Agarwal

DIN: 08155585




. MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2019

1

(Ahamounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations 17.36
Other income 15 2.00
Total income 19.36
Expenses
; Finance costs 16 1.47
Other expenses 17 31.24
Total expenses 32.71
Z Loss before tax (13.35)
Tax expense:
- Current tax 18 -
| - Deferred tax 18 (0.21)
{ Total tax expense (0.21)
Loss for the period . (13.14)

| Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
A (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
B (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss “

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax .

Total comprehensive income for the period (13.14)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥1 each
| Basic 19 (43.80)
| Diluted 19 (43.80)

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

o A b )
W ke
- Nikhil Sawhney i /.}‘.“Aga al
e

Director Director
DIN: 00029028 DIN: 08155585

Yogesh K. G //'. ta~”
Partner
Membership No. 093214

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 10, 2019




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2019
(Al amousts in &alds, wnless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares issued durilg the period ' 030
As at 31 March 2019 0.30
B. Other equity

Loss for the period (13.14) (13.14)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the period (13.14) (13.14)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (13.19) (13.14)
The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants o Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

Firm's registration number

AN

Yogesh K. Gup » e | Nikhil Sawhney
Partner - Director Director
Membershi DIN: 00029028 DIN: 08155585

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 10, 2019




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 2019
(ANl amounds in ¥ lakls, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (13.35)
Adjustments for
Interest income (2.00)
Finance costs 1.47
Working capital adjustments :
Change in other assets (2316.04)
Change in trade payables 2.22
Change in other liabilities 2799.91
Cash generated from operations 472.21
Income tax paid (50.13)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 422.08
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease / (increase) in deposits with banks (415.00)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (415.00)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 0.30
Proceeds from borrowings 80.00
Interest paid (0.15)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 80.15
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 87.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (refer note 6 (a)) 87.23

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Cash flows
Finance costs accruals

Balance as at 31 March 2019

80.00

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S S Kothari Mehta & Compa,

Yogesh / up

Partner
Membership No. 093214

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 10, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

WO O

Nikhil Sawhney al
Director Director
DIN: 00029028 DIN: 08155585




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information

Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares,
incorporated on 12 June 2018 and domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is located at A-
44, Hosiery Complex, Phase Il extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited, incorporated as a special purpose vehicle for
implementation of a project/order awarded to the Company under a contract entered into with U.P. Jal
Nigam, Agra and National Mission for Clean Ganga under the Namami Gange Programme.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
() Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost convention
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The operating cycle of
the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents.

(b) Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recongised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Transaction price at which revenue is recognised
is net of variable consideration (viz. returns, trade allowances, rebates and other similar allowances),
goods & services tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any. Variable consideration is
estimated based on the expected value of outflow.

Recognising revenue from major business activities

(i) Rendering of services
The Company provides engineering services that are either sold separately or bundled together




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

(©

(if)

Contracts for bundled sales of goods and engineering services are comprised of two performance
obligations because the promises to transfer goods and provide engineering services are capable
of being distinct and separately identifiable. Accordingly, the Company allocates the transaction
price based on relative stand-alone selling prices of such goods and engineering services.

The Company recognises revenue from engineering services over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service is determined as follows:
* erection & commissioning / servicing revenue - based on technical estimate of completion
of physical proportion of the contract work;
* operation & maintenance revenue - as the proportion of the total period of services contract
that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are analysed to determine combination of contracts and identification of
performance obligations and accordingly transaction price is allocated amongst performance
obligations based on stand-alone selling prices. Performance obligations, in construction
contracts, generally includes construction/ turnkey related activities and operation &
maintenance related activities which are satisfied over time with the customer receiving benefits
out of the activities being performed by the Company.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs,
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can
be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of performance obligations of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of the contract costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by

which the asset’s carryin ount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
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(d)

()

higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(1) Current tax .
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises. from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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(i)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

(f) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

@)

(i)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(g) Financial assets

)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.
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(i)

(iii)

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

*  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets” cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
the Company applies simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected life time losses to be recognised after initial recognition of receivables. For
recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve months ECL is used to provide for impairment
loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on twelve-months ECL. ECL is determined with reference to historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the financial asset and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates.
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(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company
* has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* relains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Company allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues

to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
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(ii)

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading; or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial

liabilittes at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition

Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(i)

()

(k)

@

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2: Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to
be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Revenue and cost estimation for construction contracts

The revenue recognition pertaining to construction contracts are determined on proportionate
completion method based on actual construction contract costs incurred till balance sheet date
and total budgeted construction contract costs. An estimation of total budgeted construction
contract cost involves making various assumptions that may differ from the actual developments
in the future. These include delays in execution due to unforeseen reasons, inflation rate, future
material rates, future labour rates etc. The estimates/assumptions are made considering past
experience, market/inflation trends and technological developments etc. All such estimates/
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(ii) Current taxes and deferred taxes
Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility
of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit would be available against which the losses could be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax optimisation strategies.
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Note 3 : Deferred tax assets

As at 31 March 2019

Deferred tax assets 0.21
Deferred tax liabilities -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 0.21

(i) Movement in deferred tax balances
For the period ended 31 March 2019

Recognised in profit

Recognised in OCI

Closing balance

or loss
Unutilised tax losses 0.21 - 0.21
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 0.21 - 0.21
Note 4 : Income tax balances
As at 31 March 2019
Current Non- current
Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) - 50.13
- 50.13
Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) - -
Note 5 : Other assets
As at 31 March 2019
Current Non- current
Advances to suppliers 1910.06 -
Indirect tax and duties recoverable 268.57 -
Prepaid expenses 91.37 28.67
Due from customers under construction contracts [refer (i) below}] 17.36 -
Total other assets 2287.36 28.67

(i) Contract balances

Contract assets
- Amounts due from customers under construction contracts 17.36

Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers

2506.70

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
achievement of milestones. Upon achievement of milestones, billing is done and contract assets are reclassified to
trade receivables. The Company is incorporated as a special purpose vehicle for implementation of a project/order
awarded to the Company under a contract entered into with U.P. Jal Nigam, Agra and National Mission for Clean
Ganga under the Namami Gange Programme. The project is on hybrind annuity PPP basis, according to which 40%
of EPC value will be paid by customer during the construction period and balance 60% will be paid during O&M
period of 15 years alongwith interest computed at SBI one year MCLR plus 3%.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as the amounts due
to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are
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Note 6 : Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 March 2019

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 87.23

Total cash and cash equivalents 87.23

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash eiuivalents

At amortised cost

Balances under lien/ margin/kept as security:
- in fixed deposits (original maturity exceeding three months but upto one year) 415.00

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 415.00

Note 7 : Other financial assets

As at 31 March 2019

Current - Non- current
At amortised cost
Accrued interest 2,01 -
‘Total other financial assets 2.01 -

Note 8 : Share capital

As at 31 March 2019

Number of shares Amount

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 15,00,30,000 1500.30
Preference shares of € 1 each . 70,000 0.70
1501.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIB‘ED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 30,000 0.30
(i) Movements in equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
Equity shares issued during the period 30,000 0.30
As at 31 March 2019 30,000 0.30

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of 1/~ per share. The holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of
the Company, after meeting all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
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(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

As at 31 March 2019

Number of shares % holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 30,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2019

Number of shares % holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 30,000 100%
Note 9 : Other equity

As at 31 March 2019

Retained earnings (13.14)

Total other equity (13.14)

(i) Retained earnings

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax -
Closing balance (13.14)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity
shareholders in accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 10 : Non-current borrowings

As at 31 March 2019

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Loans from related parties (refer note 20} 80.00

Total non-current borrowings 80.00

(i) The Coupon rate of interest and weighted average effective interest rate: 9% per annum.

(ii) Repayment terms of loan: In view of Tata Cleantech Capital Limited ("Lender to the Project’) stipulation that loan
from Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company') to the Company cannot be repaid by the
Company till the loan from Lender to the Project is fully repaid, repayment terms of loan from Holding Company
will be decided mutually between the Company and Holding Company after satisfactory construction of the Project
subject to the approval of the Lender to the Project.

Note 11 : Trade payables

As at 31 March 2019

Current Non- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 25)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

. . . 222 -
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables A MEHTa o 2.22 -

o

> A

\g?'
AQ
T
@ | NEWDELHI | =
@ -~
* Y
< N

& y
red pccotS




o MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019
T (Al amounis in & lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

Note 12 : Other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2019

Current Non- current

At amortised cost

Accrued interest 1.32 -

Total other financial liabilities 1.32 -

Note 13 : Other liabilities

As at 31 March 2019
Current Non- current
Advances from customers - 2506.70 -
Statutory remittances 292.71 -
Miscellaneous other payables 0.50 -
Total other liabilities 2799.91 -

Note 14 : Revenue from operations

For the period from

12 June 2018 to

31 March 2019
Construction contract revenue 17.36
Total revenue from operations 17.36

(i) Unsatisfied long-term construction contracts:
The transaction price allocated to contract (viz. a project awarded under Namami Gange Programme) that is partially
unsatisfied as at reporting date alongwith expected period of its revenue recognition, is as follows:

‘ As at 31 March 2019

Within one year 10926.95
More than one year 10926.94
Total 21853.89

(ii) Revenue recognised in profit or loss is same as contract price.

Note 15 : Other income

For the period from

12 June 2018 to

31 March 2019
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 2.00
Total other income 2.00

Note 16: Finance costs

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Interest on loan 147

Total finance costs
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Note 17 : Other expenses

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Travelling and conveyance 017
Rates and taxes 12.89
Insurance 081
Legal and professional expenses 174
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 0.50
Bank charges 15.06
Miscellaneous expenses 0.08
Total other expenses 31.24

(i) Detail of payment to auditors

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Statutory audit fee

Total payment to auditors 0.50

Note 18 : Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Current tax -

Deferred tax
- In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences (0.21)

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (0.21)

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2039

Loss before tax (13.35)
Income tax calculated at 26% (347)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 3.26
Total income tax expense/{credit) recognised in profit or loss 0.21)

Note 19 : Earnings per share

For the period from

12 June 2018 to
31 March 2019

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] : (13.14)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 30,000
Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (43.80)

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (43.80)
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Note 20 : Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
(a) Holding company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Holding C a
olding »()mp”my Total
TEIL

Nature of transactions with Related Parties for the period from 12 June 2018 to31 March 2019

Interest expense 1.47 1.47

Expenses incurred by party on behalf of the Company on

reimbursable basis (net) (40.96) (40.96)
Issue of equity share capital 0.30 0.30

Advance paid against order 1908.30 1908.30

Loans received 80.00 80.00

Outstanding balances as at 31 March 2019

Receivable 1908.30 1908.30
Payable 81.32 81.32

(iv) Terms & conditions:
(a) Loan from the Holding Company are given at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing
market rate of interest. All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions
and at market rates.
(b) The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. The
Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties
for the period ended 31 March 2019.
(c) The Holding Company, during the year, has given corporate guarantee amounting to X 9915 lakhs
in connection with a loan agreed to be granted by the lender to the Company, which will come into
force upon availment of loan by the Company in subsequent year(s).
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Note 21 : Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management is to maximize sharcholder value and to keep leverage within reasonable limits for financial prudence. The
Company does not have significant borrowings as at year end.

The capital structure of the Company has been agreed with the lender and therefore debt from the lender and equity/loans from the holding cornpany will be
availed as per the structure agreed with the lender. Accordingly, the Company intends to avail equity/loan from the holding company to the extent of
¥ 3305 lakhs and a loan of ¥ 9915 lakhs from the lender.

Note 22 : Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise cash and bank balances. In the initial
stage of business activities, the Company is exposed mainly to liquidity risk and is not exposed to credit risk and market risk. The monitoring and management
of such risks is undertaken by the senior management of the Company.

Liquidity risk

In view of preliminary stage of project during the period under review, the Company has managed its liquidity mainly from advance received from customer

and to a minor extent through loan from the holding company The Company intends to fund its working capital requirements and construction costs, to be
received on deferred payment basis, from equity/loan from the holding company, borrowing from the lender and milestone payments from customer,

Table hereunder provides the current ratios of the Company as at the period end :

As nl.’?)'} M‘.\l"Cﬁ 2019

‘Total current assets 2791.60
Total current labilities 2803.45

Current ratio 1.00

All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting date.

Credit risk

The contract being executed by the Company has been entered into with UP Jal Nigam, Agra and National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) under the
approved flagship Namami Gange programme. As per the terms of the contract, escrow account mechanism has been prescribed for payment to the Company
and NMCG is required to fund the escrow account with an amount equivalent to next 2 payment milestone at all times during the construction period and
O&M period. Thus, the credit risk to the Company is moderate.

Market risk - interest rate risk

The project under implementation by the Company is on hybrid annuity PPP basis, according to which 40% of EPC value will be paid by customer during the
construction period and balance 60% will be paid during O&M period of 15 years alongwith interest computed at SBI one year MCLR plus 3%. It is therefore
critical for the Company to secure interest rate on borrowing at appropriate level so as to optimise interest gains.
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Note 23 : Fair value mieasurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

As.at 31:-March 2019

vrTry Amortised
EVTOC cost

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances - 502.23

Other financial assets - 2.01
Total financial assets - 504.24
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 80.00

Trade payables - 222

Other financial liabilities - 1.32
Total financial liabilities - 83.54

(ii) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
financial statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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Note 24 : Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2019,

Note 25 : Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

: 31 March. 2019
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount

(i) Interest due on above -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during -
each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 26 : Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below.
The Company intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 30 March 2019 and it replaced Ind AS 17 Leases, including
appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees ~
leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standard effective from April 1, 2019. As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements, the Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Note 27 : Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 10 May 2019 subject to approval of
shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants

Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited
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Yogesh K. Gupta
Partner
Membership Ng.

Nikhil Sawhney B. K. Agarwa
Director Director
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